
 

 
County Hall, New Road, Oxford, OX1 1ND 

www.oxfordshire.gov.uk  Fax: 01865 783195  Media Enquiries 01865 815266 
 

Notice of a Meeting 
 

Growth & Infrastructure Scrutiny Committee 
Wednesday, 28 October 2009 at 10.00 am 

County Hall 
Membership 
 
Chairman - Councillor Patrick Greene 
Deputy Chairman - Councillor David Nimmo-Smith 
 
Councillors: Lorraine Lindsay-

Gale 
Michael Gibbard 
Charles Mathew 

 

Anne Purse 
Keith Strangwood 

John Tanner 
 

David Turner 
Nicholas P. Turner 

 

 
Notes:  

Date of next meeting: 9 December 2009 
 
What does this Committee review or scrutinise? 
• Transport; highways; traffic and parking; road safety (those areas not covered by the 

Safer & Stronger Communities Scrutiny Committee); public passenger transport 
• Regional planning and local development framework; economic development; waste 

management; environmental management; archaeology; access to the countryside; 
tourism 

• The planning, highways, rights of way and commons/village greens functions of the 
Planning & Regulation Committee 

 
How can I have my say? 
We welcome the views of the community on any issues in relation to the responsibilities 
of this Committee.  Members of the public may ask to speak on any item on the agenda 
or may suggest matters which they would like the Committee to look at.  Requests to 
speak must be submitted to the Committee Officer below no later than 9 am on the 
working day before the date of the meeting. 
 
For more information about this Committee please contact: 
 
Chairman - Councillor Patrick Greene 
  E.Mail: patrick.greene@oxfordshire.gov.uk 
Committee Officer - Sue Whitehead, Tel: (01865) 810262 

sue.whitehead@oxfordshire.gov.uk 
 

 

 
Tony Cloke  
Assistant Head of Legal & Democratic Services October 2009 

Public Document Pack



 

 

About the County Council 
The Oxfordshire County Council is made up of 74 councillors who are democratically 
elected every four years. The Council provides a range of services to Oxfordshire’s 
630,000 residents. These include: 
 
schools social & health care libraries and museums 
the fire service roads  trading standards 
land use  transport planning waste management 
 

Each year the Council manages £0.9 billion of public money in providing these services. 
Most decisions are taken by a Cabinet of 9 Councillors, which makes decisions about 
service priorities and spending. Some decisions will now be delegated to individual 
members of the Cabinet. 
 
About Scrutiny 
 
Scrutiny is about: 
• Providing a challenge to the Cabinet 
• Examining how well the Cabinet and the Authority are performing  
• Influencing the Cabinet on decisions that affect local people 
• Helping the Cabinet to develop Council policies 
• Representing the community in Council decision making  
• Promoting joined up working across the authority’s work and with partners 
 
Scrutiny is NOT about: 
• Making day to day service decisions 
• Investigating individual complaints. 
 
What does this Committee do? 
The Committee meets up to 6 times a year or more. It develops a work programme, 
which lists the issues it plans to investigate. These investigations can include whole 
committee investigations undertaken during the meeting, or reviews by a panel of 
members doing research and talking to lots of people outside of the meeting.  Once an 
investigation is completed the Committee provides its advice to the Cabinet, the full 
Council or other scrutiny committees. Meetings are open to the public and all reports are 
available to the public unless exempt or confidential, when the items would be 
considered in closed session 
 

If you have any special requirements (such as a large print 
version of these papers or special access facilities) please 
contact the officer named on the front page, giving as much 
notice as possible before the meeting  

A hearing loop is available at County Hall. 
 
 
 



 

 

 
AGENDA 

 

1. Apologies for Absence and Temporary Appointments  
 

2. Declarations of Interest - see guidance note on the back page  
 

3. Minutes (Pages 1 - 10) 
 

 To approve the minutes of the meeting held on 16 September 2009 (GI3) and to note 
for information any matters arising on them. 

4. Speaking to or petitioning the Committee  
 

REVIEW WORK 
To take evidence, receive progress updates and consider tracking reports. 

5. Question and Answer - Park & Ride  
 

 10.00 am 
 
A question & answer session has been arranged in relation to park & ride. 
 

6. Question and Answer- the Council's policy on archaeological remains in respect 
 of planning applications  

 

  11.10 am 
 
A question & answer session has been arranged in relation to the Council's policy on 
archaeological remains in respect of planning applications 
 
Rob Dance, Planning Implementation Group Manager and Paul Smith, County 
Archaeological Officer will attend to make a presentation . 

 

7. Capital Infrastructure Process - Quarterly Update (Pages 11 - 30) 
 

 12.10 pm 
 
To receive the first of the quarterly update reports (GI7) 
 
LUNCH  12.30 pm 

8. Local Transport Plan 3 Scrutiny Working Group  
 

 12.45 pm 
 



- 2 - 
 

 

Councillor David Nimmo-Smith will provide a brief update. 

9. Minerals and Waste Development Framework Progress Update (Pages 31 - 36) 
 

 1.00 pm 
 
To consider progress on the Minerals and Waste Development Framework.  
  
Peter Day, Minerals & Waste Policy Team Leader will attend to respond to questions 
 on the report submitted (G19) 

 

BUSINESS PLANNING 
To consider future work items for the Committee 

10. Work Programme (Pages 37 - 38) 
 

 1.15 pm 
 
To consider an update on the work programme (GI10). 

11. Forward Plan  
 

 1.25 pm 
 
The Committee is asked to suggest items from the current Forward Plan on which it 
may wish to have an opportunity to offer advice to the Cabinet before any decision is 
taken, together with details of what it thinks could be achieved by looking at any items. 

Close of Meeting : 1.30 pm 
 

  



- 3 - 
 

 

 

Declarations of Interest 
 
This note briefly summarises the position on interests which you must declare at the meeting.   
Please refer to the Members’ Code of Conduct in Section DD of the Constitution for a fuller 
description. 
 
The duty to declare … 
You must always declare any “personal interest” in a matter under consideration, ie where the 
matter affects (either positively or negatively): 
(i) any of the financial and other interests which you are required to notify for inclusion in the 

statutory Register of Members’ Interests; or 
(ii) your own well-being or financial position or that of any member of your family or any 

person with whom you have a close association more than it would affect other people in 
the County. 

 
Whose interests are included … 
“Member of your family” in (ii) above includes spouses and partners and other relatives’ spouses 
and partners, and extends to the employment and investment interests of relatives and friends 
and their involvement in other bodies of various descriptions.  For a full list of what “relative” 
covers, please see the Code of Conduct. 
 
When and what to declare … 
The best time to make any declaration is under the agenda item “Declarations of Interest”.  
Under the Code you must declare not later than at the start of the item concerned or (if different) 
as soon as the interest “becomes apparent”.    
In making a declaration you must state the nature of the interest. 
 
Taking part if you have an interest … 
Having made a declaration you may still take part in the debate and vote on the matter unless 
your personal interest is also a “prejudicial” interest. 
 
“Prejudicial” interests … 
A prejudicial interest is one which a member of the public knowing the relevant facts would think 
so significant as to be likely to affect your judgment of the public interest.  
 
What to do if your interest is prejudicial … 
If you have a prejudicial interest in any matter under consideration, you may remain in the room 
but only for the purpose of making representations, answering questions or giving evidence 
relating to the matter under consideration, provided that the public are also allowed to attend the 
meeting for the same purpose, whether under a statutory right or otherwise. 
 
Exceptions … 
There are a few circumstances where you may regard yourself as not having a prejudicial 
interest or may participate even though you may have one.  These, together with other rules 
about participation in the case of a prejudicial interest, are set out in paragraphs 10 – 12 of the 
Code. 
 
Seeking Advice … 
It is your responsibility to decide whether any of these provisions apply to you in particular 
circumstances, but you may wish to seek the advice of the Monitoring Officer before the meeting. 
 
 
 



This page is intentionally left blank



GIOCT2809R01_v10.doc 

ITEM GI3 
 

GROWTH & INFRASTRUCTURE SCRUTINY COMMITTEE 
 
MINUTES of the meeting held on 18 February 2009 commencing at 10.00 am and 
finishing at 2.44 pm.   
 
 
Present: 
 
Voting Members: Councillor Patrick Green - in the chair 

 
Councillor Lorraine Lindsay-Gale 
Councillor Charles Mathew 
Councillor Anne Purse 
Councillor John Tanner 
 
 

Other Members in Councillor Ian Hudspeth (for Agenda Item 4) 
Attendance: Councillor Stewart Lilly (for Agenda Item 4 and 5) 
 Councillor Mrs Catherine Fulljames (for Agenda Item 4)

  
   
Officers: 
 
Whole of meeting: Alexandra Bailey, Sue Whitehead (Corporate Core), Director 

of Environmwent & Economy,  
 
Part of meeting: 
 
Agenda Item Officer Attending 
5. Call in of Decision 
by the Cabinet – 
Oxfordshire Residual 
Waste Treatment 
Procurement – 
Selection of a 
Preferred Bidder 

N. Hyde, A. Pau; F. Upton; (Environment & Economy) 

 

5. Access Science 
Vale UK 

John Disley (Environment & Economy) 

 
The Scrutiny Committee considered the matters, reports and recommendations 
contained or referred to in the agenda for the meeting and agreed as set out below.  
Copies of the agenda and reports are attached to the signed Minutes. 
 

Agenda Item 3

Page 1



GI3 – page 2 

GIOCT2809R01_v10.doc 

 
4/09 APOLOGIES FOR ABSENCE AND TEMPORARY APPOINTMENTS 
 

Apologies for absence and temporary appointments were received as 
follows: 
 
Apology from Temporary Appointment 
Councillor Strangwood Councillor Stratford 
Councillor Nicholas P. Turner Councillor Tilley 
Councillor Gibbard Councillor Fitzgerald-O’Connor 
Councillor D Turner Councillor Goddard 
 

5/09 DECLARATIONS OF INTEREST 
 
Councillors Nimmo-Smith, Lindsay-Gale and Anda Fitzgerald-O’Connor 
declared a personal interest during discussion of agenda item 4 on the ‘Call 
in of ‘Decision by the Cabinet – Oxfordshire Residual Waste Treatment 
Procurement – Selection of a Preferred Bidder’ by reason of their 
membership of the Planning & Regulation Committee.  
 
Councillors Greene and Mathew declared a personal interest during 
discussion of agenda item 4 on the ‘Call in of ‘Decision by the Cabinet – 
Oxfordshire Residual Waste Treatment Procurement – Selection of a 
Preferred Bidder’ by reason of their substitute membership of the Planning & 
Regulation Committee.   
 
Councillor Tanner declared a personal interest during discussion of agenda 
item 4 on the ‘Call in of ‘Decision by the Cabinet – Oxfordshire Residual 
Waste Treatment Procurement – Selection of a Preferred Bidder’ as 
Chairman of the Oxfordshire Waste Partnership.  
 

6/09 MINUTES 
 
The minutes of the meeting of the Growth & Infrastructure Scrutiny 
Committee (CG3) held on 22 July 2009 were approved and signed  subject to 
the following: 
 
Date to be corrected to read 22 July 2009.  
 
Name of Chairman to be corrected to read Councillor Patrick Greene and 
Councillor David Nimmo-Smith and the Director of Environment & Economy 
to be added to the list of those present. 

Page 2



GI3 – page 3 

GIOCT2809R01_v10.doc 

 
 

7/09 PETITIONS AND PUBLIC ADDRESS 
 
 The following requests to address the Committee had been agreed. 
 

4. Call in of Decision by the 
Cabinet – Oxfordshire Residual 
Waste Treatment Procurement 
– Selection of a Preferred 
Bidder 

Mr B. Steventon, Ardley with Fewcott 
Parish Council 

 Mr C Owen, Sutton Courtenay Against 
the Incinerator 

 Mr P. Gibbs 
 Mr M. Gammond, Chair of Bucknell 

Parish Council 
 Ms H. Marshall Watt 
 Mr J. Kightly 

 
8/09 CALL IN OF DECISION BY THE CABINET – OXFORDSHIRE RESIDUAL 

WASTE TREATMENT PROCUREMENT – SELECTION OF A PREFERRED 
BIDDER 
(Agenda Item 5) 

 
The Chairman invited Councillor Hudspeth to the table as Cabinet Member 
for Growth & Infrastructure. 
 
The Chairman stressed that the Scrutiny Committee could only consider 
those grounds set out in the call documents to see if there was justification to 
ask Cabinet to review. He set out the process to be followed 
 
Mr Steventon referred to item 1 in the grounds for call in supporting the view 
that the meeting had been poorly publicised and querying if the Cabinet 
meeting had been legally convened. He also supported a review on financial 
grounds. 
 
Mr Owen supported the call in as he felt that the procurement decision was 
premature in being made prior to the determination of the planning 
applications and the environment agency permits. 
 
Mr Gibbs asked the Committee to examine the mistakes that he felt Cabinet 
had made and to suggest an independent review. He referred in particular to 
decisions to make the process technology neutral that worked against the 
environmental targets set by the County Council; problems with public 
engagement and the existence of alternative technology. 
 
Mr Gammond drew attention to a joint letter of objection, signed by 19 parish 
councils questioning the process. He felt that the Cabinet decision had raised 
more questions and that the mechanism for determination was totally flawed. 
He queried the decision being taken before the planning applications were 

Page 3



GI3 – page 4 

GIOCT2809R01_v10.doc 

considered and raised concerns over what he saw as the preferred bidders’ 
lack of experience 
 
Ms Watt expressed the view that the notification of the Cabinet meeting was 
inappropriate given the importance of the decision to be taken. She 
expressed concern that one of the preferred bidder was not roofing over the 
bottom ash storage as was proposed in the other bid. She queried whether 
the bid represented true value for money and queried whether any of the 
financial information would be made available. 
 
Mr Kightly expressed concern over the environmental impact. He was also 
concerned at the apparent lack of a break clause. He felt that the decision 
would work against recycling and innovation and that alternative solutions 
using newer technologies should be sought.  
 
Councillor Mrs Catherine Fulljames, speaking as a local member noted the 
preferred bidder site was adjacent to one of the proposed eco-town sites. 
She complained that despite making a formal approach as a local member 
she had not been allowed to see the papers containing exempt information. 
She stated that the public did not see that it was the correct course of action 
to decide the procurement before the planning decisions had been taken. 
She noted the length of the contract and felt that this had been a big decision 
to take without knowing who the bidders were. She asked why a site closer to 
Oxford could not be found. 
 
Councillor Stewart Lilly, speaking as a local member noted that a time of 
financial cuts the contract proposed was a very expensive contract over 25 
years. He queried whether there was certainty that this was the correct way 
forward. He referred to sites that he was aware of that were experiencing 
problems in terms of their environmental impact and reliability. He also 
referred to decisions of other authorities moving away from the idea of an 
incinerator. He referred to the ongoing increase in recycling and enquired in 
to the viability and capability of the Council of supplying sufficient materials. 
He also expressed concern that he had not seen the Annexes containing 
exempt information. 
 
Responding to the point on exempt papers the Director of Environment & 
Economy stated that Councillor Mrs Catherine Fulljames had made a formal 
request and had now received an acknowledgement of her need to see the 
restricted papers. A set had been sent to her. He added that the question of 
restricted papers was set out in the constitution but was not clear cut. 
Members needed to demonstrate a need to know. The papers related to 
commercial details of negotiation and there were issues of commercial 
confidentiality. Nick Graham confirmed that the Director was correct and that 
the constitution reflected legal principles and set out the process including a 
right to appeal a decision not to make papers available. 
 
Councillor Tanner stated that he did not find this satisfactory and requested 
that he receive a copy of the papers. 
 

Page 4



GI3 – page 5 

GIOCT2809R01_v10.doc 

Call In A 
 
Point 1 – Councillor Purse spoke in support of point 1 stating that the meeting 
was poorly advertised and not visible in the meetings calendar on the web 
site on 4 September. It was also the only instance she was aware of Cabinet 
meeting on a Monday. She felt that the meeting took most people by 
surprise. 
 
In response the Head of Communications, Marketing & Public Affairs detailed 
the efforts made to publicise the meeting including giving a detailed briefing 
to the media on 28 August. The item was carried on local radio and television 
and local newspapers carried pieces on the decision to be taken. The 
Director of Environment & Economy added that the meeting itself had been 
properly notified and the steps outlined had been to ensure that external 
publicity had been maximised. The web site was one medium of publicity and 
there had been a problem that had since been rectified. 
 
Responding to further concerns that the lack of web site information was not 
in the spirit of the law relating to publicising meetings the Director of 
Environment & Economy refuted such claims. The web site was a passive 
medium and they had taken the view that there needed to be complex and 
comprehensive active publicity involving a multi media approach. 
 
Point 2 – Councillor Goddard stated that although aware of the legal 
arguments that procurement and planning were separate decisions everyone 
was liable to influence despite our determination to be impartial. That being 
the case he felt that it was better to take the planning decision before the 
procurement decision. 
 
It was noted that call In B made a similar point and Councillor Tanner also 
spoke in support. He noted that if the planning application failed then the 
whole process could fall apart. 
 
During discussion the view was expressed that in respect of the process it 
would be the same which ever decision came first and that the Planning & 
Regulation Committee had a difficult decision either way round.  
 
The point was made that planning was a quasi judicial function within a 
planning framework. The decision there was made on planning merits. The 
procurement decision was not and it was queried why it could not then be 
constrained by following the planning application. 
 
With reference to slides the Committee was advised that in putting the 
procurement decision first the Council had followed standard government 
guidance. It was noted that planning applications could be put forward 
independently of any procurement process. 
 
Point 3 – Councillor Goddard expressed the view that environmental grounds 
had been given insufficient weight in the procurement process in disregard of 
European standards and the Council’s own framework. Although the aim had 

Page 5



GI3 – page 6 

GIOCT2809R01_v10.doc 

been a technology neutral process he felt that this was not the outcome. Only 
one process was considered and other technologies had been ignored. 
Incineration could be the wrong route as other ways had not been 
considered. He felt that if the argument in response was that it was too late to 
turn back he was not convinced. 
 
The Director for Environment & Economy replied that the decision was the 
end point of a nearly three year process. There were points along the way 
where other processes were considered. The Committee was further advised 
that following detailed assessment both bids had passed the technology and 
environmental thresholds and they noted the tender evaluation criteria and 
weightings.  
 
Point 4 – Councillor Purse queried whether the Council could be confident in 
25 years time that this was the technology we would want to be using. There 
were new technologies and they only required time to become established. 
 
In response the Committee was advised that there was no specific break 
clause but there was a right to voluntarily terminate and to terminate for 
breach of contract. The reasons for the length of the contract were explained. 
The right to voluntarily terminate would be expensive without due cause. 
 
During discussion Members queried what would constitute due reason and 
Councillor Tanner expressed the view that a break clause meant the right to 
break the contract without undue compensation. 
 
Point 5 – Councillor Purse explained that the question under point 5 had 
come up at Cabinet and queried how a bid could come forward that referred 
to a specified amount of material. 
 
In response the Committee was advised that the question had been 
answered at Cabinet and there had been no doubt that both bids were fully 
compliant. The desire for exclusivity was a preference and not a contractual 
requirement. The process was designed to get the best bid from each 
tenderer. The Council knew from early on that one tender would not propose 
exclusivity and it was not unusual to get exclusivity. The Cabinet Member for 
Growth & Infrastructure confirmed that there had been discussion on this 
matter at Cabinet and that following an explanation from officers Cabinet 
Members had been clear that the bids were contractually compliant. 
 
Point 6 – Councillor Purse speaking in support of point 6 referred to earlier 
comments from a local member regarding the performance of one of the 
tenderers at an existing site. She queried whether proper checks including 
site visits had been carried out. 
 
In response the Committee was advised that the decision being made at 
Cabinet was the end of a long procurement process that had followed 
standing orders, with a Board, member involvement and site visits being part 
of it. It was confirmed that site visits had continued right up to the last month.  
 

Page 6



GI3 – page 7 

GIOCT2809R01_v10.doc 

Point 7 – Councillor Purse highlighted two issues. Firstly that she felt that the 
facility was larger than was needed and would need to be fed with waste from 
other Counties and this element had not formed part of the environmental 
impact assessment. Secondly not so much residual waste was being made 
as recycling levels increased. It was possible that there would be only very 
low levels of residual waste attracting landfill tax. 
 
It was noted that call in B made a similar point and Councillor Tanner also 
spoke in support. He referred to the need to divorce planning and 
procurement considerations. He had doubts about how the plant would be 
fed and queried whether waste would be shipped in from elsewhere and what 
impact it would have. 
 
The Director of Environment & Economy explained that the size of the facility 
was a commercial decision and that for the Council the question was whether 
it was sufficient for current and future needs. He explained the Waste 
Strategy that had been developed with the Oxfordshire Waste Partnership 
and felt that with the decision that had been taken the County had the ability 
to maximise this waste strategy to deliver waste minimisation, recycling and 
to then deal with residual waste.  
 
It was noted that the question of transporting waste was a matter that would 
be considered by the Planning & Regulation Committee. 
 
During discussion the position in relation to commercial and industrial waste 
was explored. 
 
Call in B 
 
Councillor Tanner stated that two of the points had already been dealt with. 
He stressed that in his view it was not the best method of dealing with 
residual waste. He was proud of the work of the Oxfordshire waste 
partnership in increasing the recycling levels and reducing waste. His major 
concern was that whilst incineration was better than landfill it was not the best 
available method. Other systems should have been investigated such as 
mechanical biological treatment. It was important to look again at all the 
technologies available and he feared that the choice had not been thorough.   
 
The Director of Environment & Economy replied that there had been a review 
two years ago and that the procurement process had itself taken three years.  
 
Andrew Pau, explained how the technologies had been looked at in the 
context of national policies and national concerns. With regard to global 
warming potential the bids had been assessed using a Government standard 
assessment tool. The tender offers provided very good environmental benefit 
on a par with other technologies. 
 
During discussion of the potential for heat from combined heat and power the 
Committee was advised that heat could be piped several miles and that in 

Page 7



GI3 – page 8 

GIOCT2809R01_v10.doc 

future there might be development opportunities that could make use of the 
availability of CHP. 
 
The Chairman thanked the public speakers for their comments and members 
of the Committee for their views. He noted that he had attended the cabinet 
meeting as an observer. Having listened very carefully to all the arguments at 
today’s meeting he proposed that no further action be taken because the 
Committee was satisfied that the decision was properly made. 
 
During discussion the following were amongst the points made: 
 
1) Councillor Melinda Tilley stressed that her decision would be made on the 

process followed and not on a review of the decision taken. 
2) Councillor Tanner stated that he would be voting against the 

recommendation from the Chairman as he was not convinced by the 
answers he had received. He felt that there was doubt about the best way 
to proceed, that the right thing would be to examine again and that failure 
to do so would be a dereliction of duty. 

3) Councillor Purse highlighted that there was still an issue that the public 
did not feel that they had been informed. 

4) Some other members felt assured by the information they had heard at 
the meeting and were convinced that the Council was taking the right 
course of action following  a lengthy process.  

5) Some further concern was raised that members had not been allowed 
access to the restricted papers. 

 
RESOLVED:  (on a motion from Councillor Patrick Greene, 
seconded by Councillor David Nimmo-Smith and carried by 7 votes to 3) to 
take no further action because the Committee was satisfied that the decision 
was properly made. 
 

10/09 ACCESS SCIENCE VALE UK (SCOTS) 
(Agenda Item 5) 
 
The Committee received a presentation on the Study that had been 
considered at Cabinet on 15 September. It was agreed that all committee 
members receive a copy of the presentation including A3 copies of the 
maps. 
 
Councillor Lilly speaking as a local member indicated that local parish 
councils welcomed the work undertaken so far. The initial draft appeared to 
address the concerns they had. They were anxious that the local dialogue be 
maintained and he formally requested that this contact be maintained with 
himself and the parish councils. 
 
During discussion members raised the following points: 
 
1) There was growing local concern over the pressure on river crossings. 
2) The importance of liaising with neighbouring authorities. 

Page 8



GI3 – page 9 

GIOCT2809R01_v10.doc 

3) That it was key to keep local members informed. The Chairman thanked 
officers who had come out recently to a local meeting with residents. 

4) The Chairman noted that there would be a short report from the working 
group to the next meeting. 

5) Members raised a number of individual issues relating to particular roads 
and issues. 

 
Responding to comments John Disley advised that there was a balancing act 
to be achieved between the timescales of the LDF and the LTP3. However 
they were used to dealing with processes having differing timescales. There 
were no proposal in the foreseeable future to upgrade the A34. With regard 
to the proposals for a reservoir these were at a very early stage and could 
not be taken into account very much. 
 
RESOLVED: to note the presentation. 
 

11/09 WORK PROGRAMME 
 (Agenda Item 6) 
 

The Committee considered a paper (GI6) summarising existing work 
and proposals for future work based on earlier discussions by the 
committee future commitments. Councillor Mathew noted that there 
was no mention in the minutes of the last meeting relating to CPZs. It 
was suggested that their operation in Oxford could be a future select 
committee to see assess their impact. 
 
It was agreed that committee members receive a copy of the current 
archaeological policy before the next meeting. 
 
RESOLVED: to prioritise: 

 
- question & answer sessions on biodiversity, the Council’s policy on 

archaeological remains in respect of planning applications and park and 
ride; 

- a select committee on the Council’s approach to reducing its carbon 
footprint as set out in Annex A to the report. 

 
  

12/09 FORWARD PLAN  
 

(Agenda Item 9) 
 
The Committee considered whether there were any items from the current 
Forward Plan on which it might  wish to have an opportunity to offer advice to 
the Cabinet before any decision was taken. 
 
No additional topics were identified at this stage. 

Page 9



GI3 – page 10 

GIOCT2809R01_v10.doc 

 
13/09  SERVICE & RESOURCE PLANNING 2010/11 TO 2014/15 
 

RESOLVED: to hold an informal budget briefing 
  
14/09 INFORMATION SHARE 
 
 The Committee noted the following: 
  

Subject Matter Document 
Finmere Quarry Update from Councillor Michael Gibbard  
Environment & Economy 
Seminar – 14 October 2009, 
County hall 

Members’ attention was drawn to the 
seminar to be held in October 

  
 
 
 
 
...........................................................................in the Chair 
 
Date of signing ........................................................... 2009 

Page 10



 

 

Division(s): 
 
 

GROWTH & INFRASTRUCTURE SCRUTINY COMMITTEE 
 

CAPITAL PROGRAMME- 2009/10: POSITION UPDATE- PERIOD 2 
 

Report by the Director of Environment and Economy 
 
Purpose 
 

1. This report informs the G&ISC of the progress made in delivering the capital 
programmes that have been approved by the Council. It also informs the 
G&ISC of the current position of capital expenditure and the current position 
of available resources.  
 
Background 
 

2. On 10 February 2009, the Council approved a capital programme of £538.5m 
for 2009/10 to 2013/14. This capital programme included an estimated 
spending profile of £102.1m for 2009/10. The cumulative position across the 
5-year capital programme was reported as £0.855m surplus.  
 

3. On 15 September 2009, the Cabinet considered the Capital Programme 
Update 1 (attached to the Monthly Financial Monitoring Report) and approved 
an amended capital programme with estimated outturn of £110.7m for 
2009/10. At this point, the cumulative position across the 5-year capital 
programme was reported as £6.1m shortfall.   

 
4. This report is the first Capital Programme Report to the G&ISC during the 

2009/10 financial year. It covers the results of the August 2009 capital 
monitoring, including revised projections and changes in the expected level of 
funding. 

 
Programme Progress 

 
5. Overall, the programme progressed slower than planned between 1 April 

2009 and 31 August 2009. This was expected following the changes in the 
expected level of capital receipts, delays in finalising funding agreements with 
external partners/ agencies for programmes where OCC issue grants as part 
of the programme delivery, technical delays in project delivery and rephrasing 
of some major projects. As a result, forecasted capital expenditure for 
2009/10 has reduced by £6.6m to £104.1m. This £6.6m has been re-profiled 
into 2010/11 and future years.  
 

6. Although this movement is significant, the capital programme is progressing 
well compared to the original programme approved by the Cabinet in 
February 2009 (£102.1m). The projected capital resources total as at 31st 
August 2009 is £112m. The updated capital programme shows a reduced 
cumulative deficit of -£5.4m compared to a cumulative deficit of -£6.1m in the 

Agenda Item 7

Page 11



GI7 
 
 

 

programme agreed by Cabinet in September 2009. This is an improvement of 
£0.712m. 

 
7. The overall cash-flow position has also improved significantly. The in-year 

programme surplus increased to £7.8m from £3.7m, which will be carried 
forward to fund future years capital expenditure. The cumulative deficit level 
across 2009/10 and 2010/11 has been reduced to more a more manageable 
level of £1.5m from £8.4m. 

 
Capital Expenditure to Date & Revised Projections for 2009/10 

 
8. Capital Expenditure to 31 August 2009 totalled £19.2m. The majority of this 

expenditure is related to projects at the physical construction phase or 
implementation stage. This represents 18% of the total planned expenditure 
of £104.1m.  This is in-line with the spend for the same period last year. Total 
SAP commitments (purchase orders raised) were a further £24.9m, therefore 
total committed expenditure was 42% of total planned expenditure. 
 

9. The approved budget versus revised projections (based on Annex 1) are 
presented in the graph below: 
 

£41.5 £41.3

-£0.2

£8.9 £7.2

-£1.7

£30.1

£25.8

-£4.3

£16.8£16.7

-£0.2 £0.7 £0.7 £1.0 £1.0 £0.0

-£5.0

£0.0

£5.0

£10.0

£15.0

£20.0

£25.0

£30.0

£35.0

£40.0

£45.0

A
p
p
ro

ve
d
 a
n
d
 R

ev
is
ed

 B
u
d
g
et

s 
(i
n
 m

ill
io

n
s)

CYP&F (OCC) S&CS E&E Transport E&E Other CS CC

Name of the Capital Programme

2009/10 Capital Programme: Approved Budget (July 09) versus Revised Budget (October 09)

2009/10 Approved  Budget (Period 1) 2009/10 Revised  Budget (Period 2)

Variation ( additions/brought forward expenditure(+)/ slippage (-))  
 

Strategic Programme Management  
 

10. The Capital Programme is currently being managed by employing a firm and 
resource-sensitive programme management practice to maintain a balanced 
capital budget. The current deficit level is a temporary position and the work is 
ongoing to bring the 5-Year Capital Programme to the balanced position with 
sufficient level of contingency resources in line with the capital programme 
management principles agreed by the Cabinet in February 2009.  

 

Page 12



GI7 
 
 

 

11. The Capital Programme Manager and the Capital Finance Team are working 
closely with the directorates to manage the deficit and cash-flow position 
through the Capital Challenge Panels and the Capital Budget Setting Process. 
These processes brought significant progress in planning of a more realistic 
capital programme in 2008/09. They had a direct impact on the Council’s use 
of resources for capital which stands at 90% for the 2008/09 outturn.  

 
12. A new capital governance structure has also been put in place recently to 

progress the ambitious capital agenda with wider engagement of Cabinet and 
senior officers. The Capital Steering Group (predecessor of the Capital 
Investment Board) reviewed the deficit position in its July 2009 Meeting and 
agreed that the Capital Budget Setting Process for 2010/11 will focus on 
review of the current capital programme and re-consideration of the delivery 
timetable for current priorities in light of the updated capital resources profile 
and of new pressures. Both Capital Investment Board and the Capital 
Programme Board (the capital governance platforms) endorsed this approach 
in their first meetings. 

 
13. Clearly, the effective and timely delivery of the disposal programme is the key 

to successful delivery of capital programmes. There is now a stronger 
emphasis on monitoring of the disposal programme (in terms of both risk 
management and programme delivery).  A revised 5-Year Disposal 
Programme will be used as a part of the Capital Budget Setting Report to 
support a balanced capital programme across the future years.  

 
14. In terms of the Capital Strategy, the priority for 2009/10 is to deliver a Capital 

Resources Allocation Model (CRAM) based on the corporate priorities set out 
in the Corporate Plan. The model will be used as a catalyst to drive the 
priorities for capital investment and to ensure optimum use of limited financial 
resources.  

 
15. An updated corporate Capital Strategy and AMP will be reported to Strategy 

and Partnerships, and Growth and Infrastructure Scrutiny Committees in 
December.  They will then be reported to Cabinet in January, along with any 
comments from the Scrutiny Committees and form part of the budget 
proposals for onward recommendation to Council in February. 

 
 
HUW JONES 
Director for Environment & Economy  
 
Contact Officers: Arzu Ulusoy-Shipstone, Capital Programme Manager, Finance & 

Procurement Tel: 07824 416661 
 
October 2009  
 

Page 13



Page 14

This page is intentionally left blank



G
I7

A
n

n
ex

 1

F
in

an
ci

n
g

 o
f 

C
ap

it
al

 P
ro

g
ra

m
m

e

T
ab

le
 1

 :
 S

u
m

m
ar

y 
P

o
si

ti
o

n
T

ab
le

 2
: 

F
in

an
ci

n
g

 D
et

ai
ls

A
fte

r
A

fte
r

20
09

/1
0

20
10

/1
1

20
11

/1
2

20
12

/1
3

20
13

/1
4

20
14

/1
5

20
14

/1
5

T
O

T
A

L
20

09
/1

0
20

10
/1

1
20

11
/1

2
20

12
/1

3
20

13
/1

4
20

14
/1

5
20

14
/1

5
T

O
T

A
L

£0
00

£0
00

£0
00

£0
00

£0
00

£0
00

£0
00

£0
00

£0
00

£0
00

£0
00

£0
00

£0
00

£0
00

£0
00

£0
00

F
in

an
ci

n
g

C
re

d
it

 A
p

p
ro

va
ls

C
re

di
t A

pp
ro

va
ls

36
,1

95
28

,1
89

37
,7

92
36

,8
54

36
,0

79
0

0
17

5,
10

9
A

n
n

u
al

 C
ap

it
al

 G
u

id
el

in
es

G
ra

nt
s 

&
 C

on
tr

ib
ut

io
ns

46
,2

34
54

,7
12

26
,8

13
12

,9
54

11
,4

12
10

,0
00

0
16

2,
12

5
E

du
ca

tio
n

10
,7

52
 

5,
54

0 
14

,3
24

 
14

,3
24

 
14

,3
24

59
,2

64
D

ire
ct

 R
ev

en
ue

 F
in

an
ci

ng
1,

36
0

1,
08

1
38

0
39

0
0

0
0

3,
21

1
T

ra
ns

po
rt

16
,3

89
 

16
,0

48
 

18
,6

12
 

18
,6

12
 

18
,6

13
88

,2
74

C
ap

ita
l R

es
er

ve
 

8,
02

7
8,

02
7

P
er

so
na

l S
oc

ia
l S

er
vi

ce
s

72
 

72
 

72
 

72
 

28
8

C
ap

ita
l R

ec
ei

pt
s

7,
14

2
11

,5
35

5,
01

8
13

,8
55

3,
22

5
0

0
40

,7
75

F
ire

67
6 

69
6 

69
6 

69
6 

2,
76

4
C

ap
ita

l R
ec

ei
pt

s 
U

na
pp

lie
d

2,
98

0
2,

98
0

0
In

di
ca

tiv
e 

3 
Y

ea
r 

F
or

w
ar

d 
P

la
n 

&
 

C
on

tr
ib

ut
io

ns
 *

1,
43

1
4,

42
6

94
5

14
,5

00
31

,7
50

39
,5

50
92

,6
02

B
as

ic
 C

re
d

it
 A

p
p

ro
va

l
27

,8
89

22
,3

56
33

,7
04

33
,7

04
32

,9
37

0
0

15
0,

59
0

In
te

rn
al

 C
on

tr
ib

ut
io

n 
(*

)
2,

92
1

17
3

21
1

20
8

23
3

23
3

30
5

4,
28

4
S

C
E

(R
) 

F
or

m
ul

ai
c 

C
ap

ita
l A

llo
ca

tio
ns

 -
G

ra
nt

5,
72

2
23

,4
64

10
,4

99
10

,5
24

10
,2

90
0

0
60

,4
99

S
u

p
p

le
m

en
ta

ry
 C

re
d

it
 A

p
p

ro
va

ls
F

in
an

ci
ng

 A
dj

us
tm

en
ts

0
E

du
ca

tio
n

0
T

ra
ns

po
rt

0
T

o
ta

l F
in

an
ce

 A
va

ila
b

le
11

2,
01

2
12

3,
58

0
81

,6
58

89
,2

85
92

,9
89

49
,7

83
30

5
54

9,
61

2
P

er
so

na
l S

oc
ia

l S
er

vi
ce

s
0

O
th

er
0

P
ay

m
en

ts
/ N

o
ti

o
n

al
 P

ay
m

en
ts

P
ru

de
nt

ia
l G

ui
de

lin
es

8,
30

6
5,

83
3

4,
08

8
3,

15
0

3,
14

2
24

,5
19

C
om

m
itt

ee
 P

ay
m

en
ts

99
,7

36
10

0,
27

8
59

,2
58

44
,6

70
37

,0
10

10
,0

00
0

35
0,

95
2

T
o

ta
l C

re
d

it
 A

p
p

ro
va

ls
36

,1
95

28
,1

89
37

,7
92

36
,8

54
36

,0
79

0
0

17
5,

10
9

In
di

ca
tiv

e 
3 

Y
ea

r 
F

or
w

ar
d 

P
la

n
4,

34
1

31
,7

24
35

,8
49

38
,5

52
50

,0
47

40
,9

74
0

20
1,

48
7

P
ro

fe
ss

io
na

l F
ee

s
0

30
0

30
0

30
0

0
0

0
90

0
D

ir
ec

t 
R

ev
en

u
e 

F
in

an
ci

n
g

E
ar

m
ar

ke
d 

R
es

er
ve

 A
llo

ca
tio

ns
86

62
5

83
0

50
50

0
1,

64
1

S
pe

ci
fic

1,
36

0
1,

08
1

38
0

39
0

0
0

0
3,

21
1

In
te

rn
al

 T
ra

ns
fe

r 
(*

)
0

T
o

ta
l D

ir
ec

t 
R

ev
en

u
e 

F
in

an
ci

n
g

1,
36

0
1,

08
1

38
0

39
0

0
0

0
3,

21
1

T
o

ta
l P

ay
m

en
ts

/ N
o

ti
o

n
al

 P
ay

m
en

ts
10

4,
16

3
13

2,
92

7
96

,2
37

83
,5

72
87

,1
07

50
,9

74
0

55
4,

98
0

C
ap

it
al

 R
ec

ei
p

ts
R

ec
ei

pt
s 

7,
14

2
11

,5
35

5,
01

8
13

,8
55

3,
22

5
0

0
40

,7
75

F
in

an
ci

n
g

 S
u

rp
lu

s(
+)

/ S
h

o
rt

fa
ll 

(-
)

7,
84

9
-9

,3
47

-1
4,

57
9

5,
71

3
5,

88
2

-1
,1

91
30

5
-5

,3
68

T
o

ta
l U

sa
b

le
 R

ec
ei

p
ts

7,
14

2
11

,5
35

5,
01

8
13

,8
55

3,
22

5
0

0
40

,7
75

P
H

A
S

E
D

 P
A

Y
M

E
N

T
S

 (
N

E
T

)

* 
"I

nd
ic

at
iv

e 
3 

Y
ea

r 
F

or
w

ar
d 

P
la

n 
&

 C
on

tr
ib

ut
io

ns
" 

do
es

 n
ot

 in
cl

ud
e 

ca
pi

ta
l r

ec
ei

pt
s.

  A
ll 

ca
pi

ta
l r

ec
ei

pt
s 

ar
e 

sh
ow

n 
w

ith
in

 "
C

ap
ita

l R
ec

ei
pt

s"
 to

 e
ffe

ct
iv

el
y 

m
on

ito
r 

th
e 

de
liv

er
y 

of
 th

e 
di

sp
os

al
 p

ro
gr

am
m

e.

Page 15



G
I7

C
h

ild
re

n
, Y

o
u

n
g

 P
eo

p
le

 &
 F

am
ili

es
 -

 M
ai

n
 C

ap
it

al
 P

ro
g

ra
m

m
e 

(A
u

g
u

st
 2

00
9)

P
H

A
S

E
D

 P
A

Y
M

E
N

T
S

 (
G

R
O

S
S

)
S

P
E

C
IF

IC
 F

IN
A

N
C

IN
G

O
T

H
E

R
C

ap
it

al
P

ro
je

ct
(S

)t
ar

t
B

ef
o

re
A

ft
er

T
O

T
A

L
G

ra
n

ts
 &

R
ec

ei
p

ts
R

ef
.

N
ar

ra
ti

ve
A

p
p

r.
(F

)i
n

is
h

20
09

/1
0

20
09

/1
0

20
10

/1
1

20
11

/1
2

20
12

/1
3

20
13

/1
4

20
14

/1
5

20
14

/1
5

C
O

S
T

S
C

A
C

o
n

t'n
s

R
ev

en
u

e
F

u
n

d
B

al
an

ce
(1

)
(2

)
(3

)
(4

)
(5

)
(6

)
(7

)
(8

)
(9

)
(1

0)
(1

1)
(1

2)
(1

3)
(1

4)
(1

5)
(1

6)
(1

7)
(1

8)
£0

00
£0

00
£0

00
£0

00
£0

00
£0

00
£0

00
£0

00
£0

00
£0

00
£0

00
£0

00
£0

00
£0

00

P
ri

m
ar

y 
C

ap
it

al
 P

ro
g

ra
m

m
e

1
C

om
be

 -
 N

ew
 H

al
l &

 C
la

ss
ro

om
s

E
D

64
3

(S
) 

S
ep

t 0
8 

  
(F

) 
Ju

ne
 0

9
93

4
24

1
1,

17
5

0
37

0
0

1,
13

8

2
C

ha
rlt

on
-o

n-
O

tm
oo

r 
- 

R
ep

l o
f T

em
po

ra
ry

 
C

la
ss

ro
om

s
E

D
70

1
(S

) 
   

   
   

   
   

(F
)

23
40

0
78

2
1,

20
5

0
20

0
0

1,
18

5

3
T

ha
m

e,
 B

ar
le

y 
H

ill
 -

 R
ep

l o
f T

em
po

ra
ry

 
C

la
ss

ro
om

s
E

D
70

3
(S

) 
   

   
   

   
   

(F
)

37
30

0
1,

21
3

1,
55

0
0

30
0

0
0

1,
25

0

4
M

ar
ch

am
 (

P
ha

se
 2

) 
- 

C
la

ss
ro

om
E

D
70

4
(S

) 
M

ay
 0

9 
  

(F
) 

A
ug

 0
9

34
4

34
4

0
0

0
0

34
4

S
u

b
 T

o
ta

l P
ri

m
ar

y 
C

ap
it

al
 P

ro
g

ra
m

m
e

99
4

1,
28

5
1,

99
5

0
0

0
0

0
4,

27
4

0
35

7
0

0
3,

91
7

S
ec

o
n

d
ar

y 
C

ap
it

al
 P

ro
g

ra
m

m
e

5
W

an
ta

ge
, F

itz
w

ar
yn

 -
 P

ha
se

 1
E

D
68

9
(S

) 
N

ov
 0

8 
   

(F
) 

D
ec

 0
9 

(e
)

47
2

1,
75

6
2,

22
8

0
28

5
0

0
1,

94
3

6
W

oo
ds

to
ck

, M
ar

lb
or

ou
gh

 -
 S

ci
en

ce
 &

 R
ep

l 
T

em
po

ra
ry

 B
ui

ld
in

gs
E

D
69

2
(S

) 
A

pr
 0

9 
   

 
(F

) 
Ja

n 
10

 
(e

)

22
0

2,
30

0
79

5
3,

31
5

0
31

0
0

0
3,

00
5

7
W

itn
ey

, W
oo

d 
G

re
en

 -
 C

ha
ng

in
g 

R
oo

m
s

E
D

69
4

(S
) 

D
ec

 0
8 

   
(F

) 
Ju

ly
 0

9
13

5
15

7
29

2
0

29
2

0
0

0

8
O

xf
or

d,
 P

ee
rs

 S
ch

oo
l A

ca
de

m
y 

P
ro

je
ct

E
D

68
6

(S
) 

   
   

   
   

   
(F

)
70

5
15

,0
00

15
,2

45
2,

40
0

33
,3

50
0

29
,8

82
0

2,
12

8
1,

34
0

9
O

xf
or

d 
A

ca
de

m
y 

P
ro

je
ct

 -
 E

nv
iro

nm
en

ta
l

E
D

67
8

C
om

pl
et

e
14

6
14

6
0

14
6

0
0

0
10

C
hi

pp
in

g 
N

or
to

n 
 -

 S
ci

en
ce

E
D

70
8

(S
) 

   
   

   
   

   
(F

)
12

60
0

3,
60

0
18

8
4,

40
0

0
13

0
0

0
4,

27
0

S
u

b
 T

o
ta

l S
ec

o
n

d
ar

y 
C

ap
it

al
 P

ro
g

ra
m

m
e

1,
69

0
19

,8
13

19
,6

40
2,

58
8

0
0

0
0

43
,7

31
0

31
,0

45
0

2,
12

8
10

,5
58

P
ro

vi
si

o
n

 o
f 

S
ch

o
o

l P
la

ce
s

10
B

an
bu

ry
, H

an
w

el
l F

ie
ld

s 
- 

E
xt

en
si

on
s

E
D

67
6

(S
) 

Ju
n 

08
   

 
(F

) 
S

ep
t 0

9 
(e

)

1,
35

5
72

2
2,

07
7

0
39

4
0

0
1,

68
3

11
W

itn
ey

, T
ow

er
 H

ill
 -

 E
xt

en
si

on
E

D
68

8
(S

) 
F

eb
 0

9 
   

(F
) 

S
ep

t 0
9 

(e
)

10
4

56
5

66
9

0
66

9
0

0
0

12
C

ut
te

sl
ow

e 
- 

F
ou

nd
at

io
n 

S
ta

ge
 C

la
ss

ro
om

E
D

70
5

(S
) 

   
   

   
   

   
(F

)
25

0
25

0
0

87
0

0
16

3

13
W

itn
ey

, H
en

ry
 B

ox
 -

 M
us

ic
E

D
69

9
(S

) 
   

   
   

   
   

(F
)

22
78

0
56

4
40

1,
40

6
0

1,
36

6
0

0
40

S
u

b
 T

o
ta

l P
ro

vi
si

o
n

 o
f 

S
ch

o
o

l P
la

ce
s

1,
48

1
2,

31
7

56
4

40
0

0
0

0
4,

40
2

0
2,

51
6

0
0

1,
88

6

Page 16



G
I7

C
h

ild
re

n
, Y

o
u

n
g

 P
eo

p
le

 &
 F

am
ili

es
 -

 M
ai

n
 C

ap
it

al
 P

ro
g

ra
m

m
e 

(A
u

g
u

st
 2

00
9)

P
H

A
S

E
D

 P
A

Y
M

E
N

T
S

 (
G

R
O

S
S

)
S

P
E

C
IF

IC
 F

IN
A

N
C

IN
G

O
T

H
E

R
C

ap
it

al
P

ro
je

ct
(S

)t
ar

t
B

ef
o

re
A

ft
er

T
O

T
A

L
G

ra
n

ts
 &

R
ec

ei
p

ts
R

ef
.

N
ar

ra
ti

ve
A

p
p

r.
(F

)i
n

is
h

20
09

/1
0

20
09

/1
0

20
10

/1
1

20
11

/1
2

20
12

/1
3

20
13

/1
4

20
14

/1
5

20
14

/1
5

C
O

S
T

S
C

A
C

o
n

t'n
s

R
ev

en
u

e
F

u
n

d
B

al
an

ce
(1

)
(2

)
(3

)
(4

)
(5

)
(6

)
(7

)
(8

)
(9

)
(1

0)
(1

1)
(1

2)
(1

3)
(1

4)
(1

5)
(1

6)
(1

7)
(1

8)
£0

00
£0

00
£0

00
£0

00
£0

00
£0

00
£0

00
£0

00
£0

00
£0

00
£0

00
£0

00
£0

00
£0

00

C
h

ild
re

n
's

 &
 F

am
ily

 C
en

tr
es

14
F

le
xi

bi
lit

y 
of

 C
hi

ld
ca

re
 0

8/
09

 -
 1

0/
11

11
7

2,
00

0
5,

65
5

7,
77

2
0

7,
77

2
0

0
0

15
C

hi
ld

re
n 

C
en

tr
es

 0
8/

09
 -

 1
0/

11
7

56
0

5,
48

4
6,

05
1

0
5,

98
7

0
0

64
16

N
or

th
 E

as
t A

bi
ng

do
n 

- 
C

hi
ld

re
n 

C
en

tr
es

E
D

69
8

(S
) 

   
   

   
   

   
(F

)
16

42
4

44
0

0
44

0
0

0
0

S
u

b
 T

o
ta

l C
h

ild
re

n
's

 &
 F

am
il y

 C
en

tr
es

14
0

2,
98

4
11

,1
39

0
0

0
0

0
14

,2
63

0
14

,1
99

0
0

64

Im
p

ro
ve

m
en

ts
 o

f 
Y

o
u

n
g

 P
eo

p
le

's
 C

en
tr

es

17
F

ar
in

gd
on

 Y
ou

th
 C

en
tr

e 
10

5
12

0
22

5
0

22
5

0
0

0
18

W
al

lin
gf

or
d 

Y
ou

th
 C

en
tr

e
22

15
0

1,
00

0
35

1,
20

7
0

35
0

0
30

0
55

7
19

W
itn

ey
 Y

ou
th

 C
en

tr
e 

(P
ha

se
 1

)
92

8
10

0
0

0
20

0
80

20
B

er
in

sf
ie

ld
 Y

ou
th

 C
en

tr
e

E
D

70
7

(S
) 

   
   

   
   

   
(F

)
6

24
4

25
0

0
0

0
0

25
0

21
C

hi
ll 

O
ut

 / 
Y

ou
th

 C
ap

ita
l F

un
d

52
8

47
0

39
9

1,
39

7
0

89
7

0
0

50
0

S
u

b
 T

o
ta

l Y
o

u
th

 C
en

tr
es

75
3

99
2

1,
39

9
35

0
0

0
0

3,
17

9
0

1,
47

2
20

30
0

1,
38

7

C
h

ild
re

n
's

 H
o

m
es

 D
ev

el
o

p
m

en
t s

22
T

ho
rn

bu
ry

 H
ou

se
 C

hi
ld

re
n'

s 
H

om
e 

- 
R

ep
la

ce
m

en
t B

ui
ld

in
g 

*
E

D
70

2
(S

) 
   

   
   

   
   

(F
)

31
10

0
1,

32
3

1,
45

4
0

0
0

0
1,

45
4

A
n

n
u

al
 P

ro
g

ra
m

m
es

23
S

ch
oo

ls
 A

cc
es

s 
In

iti
at

iv
e

82
5

94
2

1,
14

2
1,

14
2

1,
14

2
1,

14
2

6,
33

5
0

0
0

0
6,

33
5

24
H

ea
lth

 &
 S

af
et

y 
- 

C
Y

P
&

F
33

1
11

9
30

5
30

5
30

5
35

0
1,

71
5

0
23

0
0

1,
69

2
25

K
ilv

ro
ug

h 
M

an
or

E
D

69
7

74
24

1
31

5
0

0
0

0
31

5
26

H
ea

lth
 &

 S
af

et
y 

- 
C

or
po

ra
te

27
0

40
0

40
0

40
0

40
0

40
0

2,
27

0
0

0
0

0
2,

27
0

27
T

em
po

ra
ry

 C
la

ss
ro

om
s 

- 
R

el
oc

at
io

n 
&

 
R

em
ov

al
30

2
54

8
85

0
60

0
60

0
60

0
3,

50
0

0
0

0
0

3,
50

0

O
th

er
 S

ch
em

es
28

S
m

al
l P

ro
je

ct
s 

0
1,

06
8

38
8

25
3

25
6

11
0

0
0

2,
07

5
0

17
4

0
85

1,
81

6
29

M
in

or
 W

or
ks

15
0

18
1

0
0

0
0

0
0

33
1

0
6

0
0

32
5

30
Lo

an
s 

to
 F

os
te

r/
A

do
pt

iv
e 

P
ar

en
ts

 (
P

ru
de

nt
ia

lly
 

F
un

de
d)

15
8

15
0

15
0

15
0

15
0

14
2

90
0

90
0

0
0

0
0

31
S

pe
ci

al
 S

ch
oo

ls
 (

16
-1

9)
56

7
56

7
0

0
0

0
56

7
32

14
-1

9 
R

ur
al

 A
re

as
37

0
43

0
30

0
1,

10
0

0
1,

10
0

0
0

0
33

14
-1

9 
D

ip
lo

m
a

41
5

2,
28

5
2,

70
0

0
2,

70
0

0
0

0
34

P
la

y 
B

ui
ld

er
29

1
95

5
86

4
2,

11
0

0
2,

11
0

0
0

0
35

S
ho

rt
 B

re
ak

s 
(A

H
D

C
)

29
9

69
8

99
7

0
99

7
0

0
0

Page 17



G
I7

C
h

ild
re

n
, Y

o
u

n
g

 P
eo

p
le

 &
 F

am
ili

es
 -

 M
ai

n
 C

ap
it

al
 P

ro
g

ra
m

m
e 

(A
u

g
u

st
 2

00
9)

P
H

A
S

E
D

 P
A

Y
M

E
N

T
S

 (
G

R
O

S
S

)
S

P
E

C
IF

IC
 F

IN
A

N
C

IN
G

O
T

H
E

R
C

ap
it

al
P

ro
je

ct
(S

)t
ar

t
B

ef
o

re
A

ft
er

T
O

T
A

L
G

ra
n

ts
 &

R
ec

ei
p

ts
R

ef
.

N
ar

ra
ti

ve
A

p
p

r.
(F

)i
n

is
h

20
09

/1
0

20
09

/1
0

20
10

/1
1

20
11

/1
2

20
12

/1
3

20
13

/1
4

20
14

/1
5

20
14

/1
5

C
O

S
T

S
C

A
C

o
n

t'n
s

R
ev

en
u

e
F

u
n

d
B

al
an

ce
(1

)
(2

)
(3

)
(4

)
(5

)
(6

)
(7

)
(8

)
(9

)
(1

0)
(1

1)
(1

2)
(1

3)
(1

4)
(1

5)
(1

6)
(1

7)
(1

8)
£0

00
£0

00
£0

00
£0

00
£0

00
£0

00
£0

00
£0

00
£0

00
£0

00
£0

00
£0

00
£0

00
£0

00

IC
T

36
H

ar
ne

ss
in

g 
T

ec
hn

ol
og

y 
G

ra
nt

94
4

1,
28

3
1,

22
5

3,
45

2
0

3,
45

2
0

0
0

37
H

om
e 

A
cc

es
s 

fo
r 

T
ar

ge
te

d 
G

ro
up

s
21

3
21

3
0

21
3

0
0

0

R
et

en
ti

o
n

s 
&

 O
xf

o
rd

 C
it

y 
S

ch
o

o
l 

R
eo

rg
an

is
at

io
n

38
20

07
/0

8 
E

ar
lie

r 
S

ta
rt

s 
- 

R
et

en
tio

ns
0

1,
32

3
20

5
0

0
0

0
0

1,
52

8
0

3,
09

9
0

1,
53

9
-3

,1
10

39
O

xf
or

d 
C

ity
 S

ch
oo

ls
 R

ev
ie

w
0

58
58

0
83

9
0

1,
19

8
-1

,9
79

S
u

b
 T

o
ta

l O
th

er
 P

ro
g

ra
m

m
es

3,
94

3
8,

66
5

10
,2

65
3,

15
0

2,
85

3
2,

74
4

0
0

31
,6

20
90

0
14

,7
13

0
2,

82
2

13
,1

85

S
u

b
 T

o
ta

l C
Y

P
F

9,
00

1
36

,0
56

45
,0

02
5,

81
3

2,
85

3
2,

74
4

0
0

10
1,

46
9

90
0

64
,3

02
20

5,
25

0
30

,9
97

S
ch

o
o

l C
ap

it
al

40
D

ev
ol

ve
d 

F
or

m
ul

a
9,

56
4

9,
56

4
9,

56
4

9,
56

4
9,

56
4

10
,0

00
57

,8
20

0
57

,8
20

0
0

0
41

H
ar

ne
ss

in
g 

T
ec

hn
ol

og
y 

G
ra

nt
1,

39
2

1,
27

6
1,

18
9

3,
85

7
0

3,
85

7
0

0
0

42
S

pe
ci

al
is

t S
po

rt
s 

C
ol

le
ge

35
0

35
0

0
35

0
0

0
0

S
u

b
 T

o
ta

l S
ch

o
o

l C
ap

it
al

0
11

,3
06

10
,8

40
10

,7
53

9,
56

4
9,

56
4

10
,0

00
0

62
,0

27
0

62
,0

27
0

0
0

C
ap

it
al

 A
d

ju
st

m
en

ts
 / 

F
u

n
d

in
g

 P
ro

vi
si

o
n

s

40
E

ffi
ci

en
cy

 S
av

in
gs

14
0

30
0

30
0

30
0

30
0

30
0

1,
64

0
0

0
0

0
1,

64
0

41
P

ro
pe

rt
y 

C
lie

nt
 F

ee
s

56
0

60
0

60
0

60
0

60
0

60
0

3,
56

0
0

0
0

0
3,

56
0

S
u

b
 T

o
ta

l S
ch

o
o

l C
ap

it
al

70
0

90
0

90
0

90
0

90
0

90
0

0
0

5,
20

0
0

0
0

0
5,

20
0

P
ro

fe
ss

io
na

l F
ee

s:
 F

irm
 P

ro
gr

am
m

e
0

0
0

0
0

0
P

ro
fe

ss
io

na
l F

ee
s:

 P
re

pa
ra

tio
n 

P
oo

l
0

0
0

0
0

0
T

O
T

A
L

 C
Y

P
&

F
9,

70
1

48
,2

62
56

,7
42

17
,4

66
13

,3
17

13
,2

08
10

,0
00

0
16

8,
69

6
90

0
12

6,
32

9
20

5,
25

0
36

,1
97

Page 18



G
I7

C
h

ild
re

n
, Y

o
u

n
g

 P
eo

p
le

 &
 F

am
ili

es
 -

 F
o

rw
ar

d
 P

la
n

 (
A

u
g

u
st

 2
00

9)

P
H

A
S

E
D

 P
A

Y
M

E
N

T
S

 / 
A

L
L

O
C

A
T

IO
N

S
S

P
E

C
IF

IC
 &

 O
T

H
E

R
 F

U
N

D
IN

G

N
ar

ra
ti

ve
20

08
/0

9
20

09
/1

0
20

10
/1

1
20

11
/1

2
20

12
/1

3
20

13
/1

4
A

ft
er

 
20

13
/1

4
T

O
T

A
L

C
O

S
T

A
d

d
it

io
n

al
R

es
o

u
rc

es
R

ev
en

u
e

F
o

rm
u

la
 

A
llo

ca
ti

o
n

s
£0

00
£0

00
£0

00
£0

00
£0

00
£0

00
£0

00
£0

00
£0

00
£0

00
£0

00

P
ri

m
ar

y 
C

ap
it

al
 P

ro
g

ra
m

m
e

B
ay

ar
d'

s
30

0
3,

50
0

4,
40

0
8,

20
0

8,
20

0
P

rim
ar

y 
S

ch
oo

l R
ev

ie
w

 (
fu

nd
in

g 
al

lo
ca

tio
n)

 
6,

56
6

7,
49

9
10

,9
64

10
,7

44
35

,7
73

4,
46

8
31

,3
05

- 
W

oo
d 

F
ar

m
30

0
5,

00
0

5,
00

0
1,

20
0

11
,5

00
67

3
69

5
10

,1
32

- 
R

os
e 

H
ill

- 
S

t A
nd

re
w

's
, C

hi
nn

or
P

rim
ar

y 
R

ep
la

ce
m

en
t o

f T
em

ps
0

0
0

0
0

0
- 

T
he

 G
ra

ng
e

70
0

80
0

1,
50

0
1,

50
0

- 
G

re
at

 M
ilt

on
25

57
5

60
0

40
56

0
- 

T
ac

kl
ey

20
0

55
0

75
0

40
71

0
- 

M
ill

 L
an

e
- 

C
um

no
r

- 
G

ar
si

ng
to

n

E
yn

sh
am

10
0

30
0

40
0

40
0

La
un

to
n

25
0

62
5

87
5

70
80

5
P

ep
pa

rd
10

0
50

0
60

0
40

56
0

H
ar

w
el

l
10

0
75

0
85

0
50

80
0

S
ec

o
n

d
ar

y 
C

ap
it

al
 P

ro
g

ra
m

m
e

B
ur

fo
rd

 -
 P

ha
se

 3
 D

ra
m

a 
&

 C
la

ss
ro

om
 B

lo
ck

20
0

2,
20

0
10

0
2,

50
0

10
0

2,
40

0
F

ar
in

gd
on

 C
om

m
un

ity
 C

ol
le

ge
 -

 P
ha

se
 3

10
0

1,
40

0
1,

50
0

50
0

1,
00

0
W

ar
rin

er
 (

D
&

T
 &

 E
xt

en
si

on
)

25
0

25
0

25
0

0

S
ec

on
da

ry
 S

ch
oo

ls
 M

od
er

ni
sa

tio
n

75
0

75
0

1,
50

0
1,

50
0

- 
B

ar
th

ol
om

ew
- 

H
en

ry
 B

ox

 S
pe

ci
al

 S
ch

oo
ls

 M
od

er
ni

sa
tio

n
0

0
- 

N
or

th
er

n 
H

ou
se

15
0

1,
20

0
10

0
1,

45
0

30
0

1,
15

0
- 

W
oo

de
at

on
 M

an
or

20
0

20
0

20
0

Lo
rd

 W
ill

ia
m

s 
- 

A
ut

is
m

 U
ni

t
50

67
0

70
0

1,
42

0
32

0
1,

10
0

F
ra

nk
 W

is
e

40
40

40
F

itz
w

ar
yn

 -
 P

ha
se

 2
20

0
2,

15
0

10
0

2,
45

0
20

0
2,

25
0

F
oo

d 
T

ec
hn

ol
og

y
20

0
10

0
30

0
30

0
0

F
oo

d 
T

ec
hn

ol
og

y
20

0
10

0
30

0
30

0
0

Page 19



G
I7

C
h

ild
re

n
, Y

o
u

n
g

 P
eo

p
le

 &
 F

am
ili

es
 -

 F
o

rw
ar

d
 P

la
n

 (
A

u
g

u
st

 2
00

9)

P
H

A
S

E
D

 P
A

Y
M

E
N

T
S

 / 
A

L
L

O
C

A
T

IO
N

S
S

P
E

C
IF

IC
 &

 O
T

H
E

R
 F

U
N

D
IN

G

N
ar

ra
ti

ve
20

08
/0

9
20

09
/1

0
20

10
/1

1
20

11
/1

2
20

12
/1

3
20

13
/1

4
A

ft
er

 
20

13
/1

4
T

O
T

A
L

C
O

S
T

A
d

d
it

io
n

al
R

es
o

u
rc

es
R

ev
en

u
e

F
o

rm
u

la
 

A
llo

ca
ti

o
n

s
£0

00
£0

00
£0

00
£0

00
£0

00
£0

00
£0

00
£0

00
£0

00
£0

00
£0

00
S

ec
on

da
ry

 M
od

er
ni

sa
tio

n
64

8
4,

10
0

4,
74

8
4,

74
8

P
ro

vi
si

o
n

 o
f 

S
ch

o
o

l P
la

ce
s

D
id

co
t, 

G
re

at
 W

es
te

rn
 P

ar
k 

- 
P

rim
ar

y 
(1

4 
cl

as
sr

oo
m

) 
N

o.
1

2,
50

0
3,

75
0

6,
25

0
6,

25
0

0
D

id
co

t, 
G

re
at

 W
es

te
rn

 P
ar

k 
- 

P
rim

ar
y 

(1
4 

cl
as

sr
oo

m
) 

N
o.

2
6,

25
0

6,
25

0
6,

25
0

0
D

id
co

t, 
G

re
at

 W
es

te
rn

 P
ar

k 
- 

S
ec

on
da

ry
 (

P
ha

se
 1

)
30

0
20

,5
00

20
,8

00
20

,8
00

0
D

id
co

t, 
La

dy
gr

ov
e 

(N
ew

 P
rim

ar
y 

S
ch

oo
l) 

- 
7 

cl
as

sr
oo

m
75

0
2,

25
0

3,
00

0
3,

00
0

0
C

ar
te

rt
on

 C
om

m
un

ity
 C

ol
le

ge
 -

 H
al

l
50

30
0

35
0

30
0

50
B

od
ic

ot
e,

 B
an

ks
id

e 
- 

10
 c

la
ss

ro
om

25
0

3,
00

0
75

0
4,

00
0

4,
00

0
0

B
ic

es
te

r,
 G

av
ra

y 
D

riv
e 

- 
7 

cl
as

sr
oo

m
50

2,
00

0
1,

95
0

4,
00

0
4,

00
0

0
B

ic
es

te
r 

- 
S

ec
on

da
ry

 P
1 

(in
cl

 e
xi

st
in

g 
sc

ho
ol

s)
50

0
4,

00
0

6,
50

0
11

,0
00

11
,0

00
0

B
ic

es
te

r 
- 

S
ec

on
da

ry
 P

2 
(in

cl
 e

xi
st

in
g 

sc
ho

ol
s)

5,
50

0
5,

50
0

11
,0

00
11

,0
00

0
B

ic
es

te
r,

 S
ou

th
 W

es
t -

 1
4 

cl
as

sr
oo

m
2,

50
0

3,
75

0
6,

25
0

6,
25

0
0

U
pp

er
 H

ey
fo

rd
 -

 N
ew

 P
rim

ar
y 

S
ch

oo
l

2,
50

0
3,

75
0

6,
25

0
6,

25
0

0
W

an
ta

ge
 / 

G
ro

ve
 -

 S
ec

on
da

ry
 (

op
tio

n 
c)

50
0

6,
00

0
7,

50
0

14
,0

00
7,

00
0

7,
00

0
W

itn
ey

, M
ad

le
y 

B
ro

ok
 -

 3
 C

la
ss

ro
om

 E
xt

en
si

on
s

50
70

0
12

5
87

5
27

5
60

0

E
xi

st
in

g 
de

m
og

ra
ph

ic
 p

up
il 

pr
ov

is
io

n
0

0
50

0
50

0
45

3
1,

45
3

50
0

95
3

- 
T

he
 C

he
rw

el
l

P
rim

ar
y 

B
as

ic
 N

ee
d 

- 
A

re
as

- 
O

xf
or

d
S

t N
ic

ho
la

s
25

0
50

0
75

0
75

0
S

S
 P

hi
lip

 &
 J

am
es

75
75

75
- 

H
en

le
y

- 
F

ar
in

gd
on

- 
W

an
ta

ge
- 

W
al

lin
gf

or
d

S
ec

on
da

ry
- 

C
oo

pe
r

20
0

80
0

3,
00

0
4,

00
0

4,
00

0
- 

W
he

at
le

y 
P

ar
k 

(H
al

l)
- 

C
he

rw
el

l (
H

al
l)

R
is

k 
/ C

o
n

ti
n

g
en

cy
0

0
25

0
25

0
25

0
1,

22
4

1,
97

4
1,

97
4

C
h

ild
re

n
's

 &
 F

am
ily

 C
en

tr
es

E
ar

ly
 Y

ea
rs

 D
ev

el
o

p
m

en
t 

F
u

n
d

in
g

E
ar

ly
 Y

ea
rs

 D
ev

el
op

m
en

t F
un

d 
(a

llo
ca

tio
n)

0
73

0
38

0
39

0
1,

50
0

1,
50

0
0

Page 20



G
I7

C
h

ild
re

n
, Y

o
u

n
g

 P
eo

p
le

 &
 F

am
ili

es
 -

 F
o

rw
ar

d
 P

la
n

 (
A

u
g

u
st

 2
00

9)

P
H

A
S

E
D

 P
A

Y
M

E
N

T
S

 / 
A

L
L

O
C

A
T

IO
N

S
S

P
E

C
IF

IC
 &

 O
T

H
E

R
 F

U
N

D
IN

G

N
ar

ra
ti

ve
20

08
/0

9
20

09
/1

0
20

10
/1

1
20

11
/1

2
20

12
/1

3
20

13
/1

4
A

ft
er

 
20

13
/1

4
T

O
T

A
L

C
O

S
T

A
d

d
it

io
n

al
R

es
o

u
rc

es
R

ev
en

u
e

F
o

rm
u

la
 

A
llo

ca
ti

o
n

s
£0

00
£0

00
£0

00
£0

00
£0

00
£0

00
£0

00
£0

00
£0

00
£0

00
£0

00

H
al

ls
 &

 K
it

ch
en

s
H

or
nt

on
 -

 H
al

l
60

0
15

0
75

0
8

74
2

W
in

dm
ill

 -
 H

al
l

15
0

15
0

15
0

S
p

ec
ia

l E
d

u
ca

ti
o

n
 N

ee
d

s

L
o

ca
lly

 C
o

-o
rd

in
at

ed
 V

o
lu

n
ta

ry
 A

id
ed

 P
ro

g
ra

m
m

e

R
is

k 
M

an
ag

em
en

t 
P

ro
g

ra
m

m
e

O
p

p
o

rt
u

n
it

y 
D

ev
el

o
p

m
en

t
K

in
g 

A
lfr

ed
's

 -
 C

on
so

lid
at

io
n

6,
00

0
6,

00
0

12
,0

00
0

12
,0

00
La

rk
m

ea
d 

- 
A

W
P

 &
 S

po
rt

s 
F

ac
ili

tie
s

30
0

30
0

60
0

0
60

0

O
u

td
o

o
r 

E
d

u
ca

ti
o

n
 S

er
vi

ce
W

oo
dl

an
ds

 -
 N

O
F

 -
 R

ef
ur

b 
A

nn
ex

37
5

37
5

37
5

Im
p

ro
ve

m
en

t 
o

f 
Y

o
u

n
g

 P
eo

p
le

's
 C

en
tr

es
W

itn
ey

 Y
ou

th
 C

en
tr

e 
P

ha
se

 2
22

5
85

0
45

1,
12

0
25

0
87

0
D

id
co

t Y
ou

th
 C

en
tr

e
30

0
30

0
30

0
0

B
ac

k 
on

 T
ra

ck
 P

ro
gr

am
m

e
65

0
60

0
1,

25
0

1,
25

0
0

C
h

ild
re

n
 H

o
m

es
 D

ev
el

o
p

m
en

t

A
n

n
u

al
 P

ro
g

ra
m

m
es

S
p

ec
if

ic
 / 

D
el

eg
at

ed
 F

u
n

d
in

g
T

ar
ge

te
d 

C
ap

ita
l -

 S
E

N
 (

al
lo

ca
tio

n)
30

0
1,

43
3

1,
60

0
3,

33
3

3,
33

3
T

ug
w

el
l

12
6

12
6

12
6

IC
T

T
O

T
A

L
 

0
4,

34
1

31
,7

24
35

,8
49

38
,5

52
50

,0
47

40
,9

74
20

1,
48

7
96

,3
34

2,
19

5
10

2,
95

8

A
ll 

sc
he

m
es

 a
re

 s
ub

je
ct

 to
 fe

as
ib

ili
ty

, o
pt

io
n 

ap
pr

ai
sa

l a
nd

 fo
rm

al
 p

ro
je

ct
 a

pp
ro

va
l.

C
ap

ita
l a

llo
ca

tio
ns

 o
nl

y 
an

no
un

ce
d 

fo
r 

08
/0

9 
to

 1
0/

11
, 1

1/
12

 to
 1

3/
14

 a
llo

ca
tio

ns
 a

re
 n

ot
io

na
l.

Page 21



G
I7

S
o

ci
al

 &
 C

o
m

m
u

n
it

y 
S

er
vi

ce
s 

- 
M

ai
n

 C
ap

it
al

 P
ro

g
ra

m
m

e 
(A

u
g

u
st

 2
00

9)

P
H

A
S

E
D

 P
A

Y
M

E
N

T
S

 (
G

R
O

S
S

)
S

P
E

C
IF

IC
 F

IN
A

N
C

IN
G

O
T

H
E

R
C

ap
it

al
P

ro
je

ct
(S

)t
ar

t
B

ef
o

re
A

ft
er

T
O

T
A

L
G

ra
n

ts
 &

R
ec

ei
p

ts
R

ef
.

N
ar

ra
ti

ve
A

p
p

r.
(F

)i
n

is
h

20
09

/1
0

20
09

/1
0

20
10

/1
1

20
11

/1
2

20
12

/1
3

20
13

/1
4

20
14

/1
5

20
14

/1
5

C
O

S
T

S
C

A
C

o
n

t'n
s

R
ev

en
u

e
F

u
n

d
B

al
an

ce
(1

)
(2

)
(3

)
(4

)
(5

)
(6

)
(7

)
(8

)
(9

)
(1

0)
(1

1)
(1

2)
(1

3)
(1

4)
(1

5)
(1

6)
(1

7)
(1

8)
£0

00
£0

00
£0

00
£0

00
£0

00
£0

00
£0

00
£0

00
£0

00
£0

00
£0

00
£0

00
£0

00
£0

00

C
o

m
m

u
n

it
y 

S
er

vi
ce

s
L

ib
ra

ri
es

1
B

an
bu

ry
 L

ib
ra

ry
 &

 M
ill

 A
rt

 C
en

tr
e

50
83

5
2,

19
0

2,
60

0
5,

67
5

0
0

0
0

5,
67

5
2

B
ic

es
te

r 
Li

br
ar

y
16

20
83

4
87

0
0

0
0

0
87

0
3

C
en

tr
al

 L
ib

ra
rie

s 
R

ef
ur

bi
sh

m
en

t
26

8
20

15
9

44
7

0
0

22
0

42
5

4
C

ha
rlb

ur
y 

Li
br

ar
y

13
0

13
0

0
0

0
0

13
0

5
H

ea
di

ng
to

n 
Li

br
ar

y
7

15
0

63
22

0
0

60
0

0
16

0
6

T
ha

m
e 

Li
br

ar
y

C
S

5
(S

) 
Ju

l 0
9 

   
(F

)
14

5
1,

29
0

25
7

1,
69

2
0

23
0

12
5

1,
54

4

7
W

at
lin

gt
on

 L
ib

ra
ry

C
S

6
(S

) 
A

ug
 0

9 
 

(F
)

13
0

60
0

40
77

0
0

27
4

72
29

5
12

9

8
Li

br
ar

y 
Im

pr
ov

em
en

t P
ro

gr
am

m
e

71
10

0
10

1
27

2
0

0
0

0
27

2
9

G
en

er
al

 L
ib

ra
ry

 R
ef

ur
bi

sh
m

en
t

31
90

27
9

20
0

60
0

0
0

0
0

60
0

C
o

u
n

ty
 H

er
it

ag
e 

&
 A

rt
s

10
A

bi
ng

do
n 

M
us

eu
m

 (
C

on
tr

ib
ut

io
n)

10
0

10
0

10
0

30
0

0
0

0
0

30
0

11
M

us
eu

m
s 

R
es

ou
rc

e 
P

ro
gr

am
m

e
C

S
7

41
10

0
49

4
63

5
0

83
0

0
55

2
12

D
ev

el
op

m
en

t P
ro

je
ct

 -
 S

O
F

O
15

15
30

0
30

0
0

0
13

P
eg

as
us

 T
he

at
re

 (
C

on
tr

ib
ut

io
ns

)
33

5
54

0
87

5
0

0
0

0
87

5
14

C
og

ge
s 

M
an

or
 F

ar
m

65
75

11
0

25
0

0
0

0
0

25
0

S
u

b
-T

o
ta

l C
o

m
m

u
n

it
y 

S
er

vi
ce

s
1,

04
4

3,
04

0
3,

38
2

2,
60

0
2,

70
0

0
0

0
12

,7
66

0
47

0
94

42
0

11
,7

82

S
o

ci
al

 C
ar

e 
fo

r 
A

d
u

lt
s

M
en

ta
l H

ea
lt

h
15

M
en

ta
l H

ea
lth

 P
ro

je
ct

s
17

7
17

7
17

7
53

1
0

53
1

0
0

0
R

es
id

en
ti

al
16

H
O

P
's

 B
ic

es
te

r 
(F

or
w

ar
d 

F
un

di
ng

)
S

S
88

1,
00

7
71

7
1,

72
4

0
0

0
0

1,
72

4
17

E
xt

ra
 C

ar
e 

H
ou

si
ng

14
23

6
65

0
90

0
0

0
0

0
90

0
18

E
xt

ra
 C

ar
e 

H
ou

si
ng

 -
 B

an
bu

ry
67

5
67

5
1,

35
0

0
1,

35
0

0
0

0
19

Le
ar

ni
ng

 D
is

ab
ili

tie
s 

- 
S

up
po

rt
ed

 L
iv

in
g

S
S

93
4

35
0

42
5

42
1

1,
20

0
0

0
0

0
1,

20
0

20
Im

pr
ov

in
g 

th
e 

C
ar

e 
H

om
e 

D
A

A
T

10
7

10
7

0
10

7
0

0
0

D
ay

 C
en

tr
es

21
A

bi
ng

do
n,

 R
es

ou
rc

e 
C

en
tr

es
 (

P
ha

se
s 

1-
3)

S
S

95
20

8
69

2
35

0
1,

25
0

0
0

0
0

1,
25

0
22

B
an

bu
ry

 D
ay

 C
en

tr
e

4
50

94
6

1,
00

0
0

0
0

0
1,

00
0

23
R

ur
al

 D
ay

 C
en

tr
es

 (
O

P
)

81
30

59
17

0
0

0
0

0
17

0
24

W
an

ta
ge

 D
ay

 C
en

tr
e

50
0

50
0

0
0

0
0

50
0

25
D

ay
 S

er
vi

ce
 O

ld
er

 P
eo

pl
e

10
0

10
0

20
0

0
0

0
0

20
0

26
D

ay
 C

en
tr

e 
- 

LD
10

0
10

0
20

0
0

0
0

0
20

0

S
u

b
-T

o
ta

l S
o

ci
al

 C
ar

e 
fo

r 
A

d
u

lt
s

1,
49

5
3,

12
7

4,
08

9
42

1
0

0
0

0
9,

13
2

0
1,

98
8

0
0

7,
14

4

Page 22



G
I7

S
o

ci
al

 &
 C

o
m

m
u

n
it

y 
S

er
vi

ce
s 

- 
M

ai
n

 C
ap

it
al

 P
ro

g
ra

m
m

e 
(A

u
g

u
st

 2
00

9)

P
H

A
S

E
D

 P
A

Y
M

E
N

T
S

 (
G

R
O

S
S

)
S

P
E

C
IF

IC
 F

IN
A

N
C

IN
G

O
T

H
E

R
C

ap
it

al
P

ro
je

ct
(S

)t
ar

t
B

ef
o

re
A

ft
er

T
O

T
A

L
G

ra
n

ts
 &

R
ec

ei
p

ts
R

ef
.

N
ar

ra
ti

ve
A

p
p

r.
(F

)i
n

is
h

20
09

/1
0

20
09

/1
0

20
10

/1
1

20
11

/1
2

20
12

/1
3

20
13

/1
4

20
14

/1
5

20
14

/1
5

C
O

S
T

S
C

A
C

o
n

t'n
s

R
ev

en
u

e
F

u
n

d
B

al
an

ce
(1

)
(2

)
(3

)
(4

)
(5

)
(6

)
(7

)
(8

)
(9

)
(1

0)
(1

1)
(1

2)
(1

3)
(1

4)
(1

5)
(1

6)
(1

7)
(1

8)
£0

00
£0

00
£0

00
£0

00
£0

00
£0

00
£0

00
£0

00
£0

00
£0

00
£0

00
£0

00
£0

00
£0

00

S
tr

at
eg

y 
&

 T
ra

n
sf

o
rm

at
io

n
27

IT
- 

S
up

po
rt

in
g 

P
eo

pl
e

81
48

12
9

0
0

0
0

12
9

28
T

im
e 

to
 C

ha
ng

e
2,

07
4

57
2,

13
1

0
0

0
1,

10
0

1,
03

1
29

A
du

lt 
S

oc
ia

l C
ar

e 
IT

 In
fr

as
tr

uc
tu

re
10

0
16

5
19

8
46

3
0

46
3

0
0

0
30

N
ew

 A
du

lt 
S

er
vi

ce
s 

S
ys

te
m

50
1,

46
0

49
0

2,
00

0
0

0
0

0
2,

00
0

31
M

ob
ile

 W
or

ki
ng

 P
ro

je
ct

26
24

50
10

0
0

0
0

0
10

0

S
u

b
-T

o
ta

l S
tr

at
eg

y 
&

 T
ra

n
sf

o
rm

at
io

n
2,

18
1

27
9

1,
67

5
68

8
0

0
0

0
4,

82
3

0
46

3
0

1,
10

0
3,

26
0

R
et

en
ti

o
n

s 
&

 M
in

o
r 

W
o

rk
s

0
0

0
0

0
0

32
R

et
en

tio
ns

0
38

3
80

46
3

0
0

0
1,

50
0

-1
,0

37
33

M
in

or
 W

or
ks

0
31

9
50

36
9

0
40

0
0

32
9

34
H

O
P

's
 E

xt
er

na
lis

at
io

n
11

,9
15

10
0

50
12

,0
65

0
80

0
0

9,
82

5
1,

44
0

S
u

b
-T

o
ta

l A
n

n
u

al
 P

ro
g

ra
m

m
es

11
,9

15
80

2
18

0
0

0
0

0
0

12
,8

97
0

84
0

0
11

,3
25

73
2

S
U

B
-T

O
T

A
L

 S
&

C
S

16
,6

35
7,

24
8

9,
32

6
3,

70
9

2,
70

0
0

0
0

39
,6

18
0

3,
76

1
94

12
,8

45
22

,9
18

P
ro

fe
ss

io
na

l F
ee

s:
 F

irm
 P

ro
gr

am
m

e
0

0
0

0
0

0
P

ro
fe

ss
io

na
l F

ee
s:

 P
re

pa
ra

tio
n 

P
oo

l
0

0
0

0
0

0
T

O
T

A
L

 S
&

C
S

16
,6

35
7,

24
8

9,
32

6
3,

70
9

2,
70

0
0

0
0

39
,6

18
0

3,
76

1
94

12
,8

45
22

,9
18

Page 23



G
I7

E
n

vi
ro

n
m

en
t 

&
 E

co
n

o
m

y 
(T

ra
n

sp
o

rt
) 

- 
M

ai
n

 C
ap

it
al

 P
ro

g
ra

m
m

e 
(A

u
g

u
st

 2
00

9)

P
H

A
S

E
D

 P
A

Y
M

E
N

T
S

 (
G

R
O

S
S

)
S

P
E

C
IF

IC
 F

IN
A

N
C

IN
G

O
T

H
E

R
C

ap
it

al
P

ro
je

ct
(S

)t
ar

t
B

ef
o

re
A

ft
er

T
O

T
A

L
G

ra
n

ts
 &

R
ec

ei
p

ts
R

ef
.

N
ar

ra
ti

ve
A

p
p

r.
(F

)i
n

is
h

20
09

/1
0

20
09

/1
0

20
10

/1
1

20
11

/1
2

20
12

/1
3

20
13

/1
4

20
14

/1
5

20
14

/1
5

C
O

S
T

S
C

A
C

o
n

t'n
s

R
ev

en
u

e
F

u
n

d
B

al
an

ce
(1

)
(2

)
(3

)
(4

)
(5

)
(6

)
(7

)
(8

)
(9

)
(1

0)
(1

1)
(1

2)
(1

3)
(1

4)
(1

5)
(1

6)
(1

7)
(1

8)
£0

00
£0

00
£0

00
£0

00
£0

00
£0

00
£0

00
£0

00
£0

00
£0

00
£0

00
£0

00
£0

00
£0

00

P
re

 2
00

9/
10

 S
ta

rt
s

R
et

en
tio

ns
 fr

om
 L

T
P

1 
sc

he
m

es
20

1
20

1
5

19
6

0
0

0

S
u

b
-T

o
ta

l P
re

 2
00

9/
10

 S
ta

rt
s

0
20

1
0

0
0

0
0

0
20

1
5

19
6

0
0

0

20
09

/1
0 

S
ta

rt
s

L
T

P
2

N
et

w
o

rk
 D

ev
el

o
p

m
en

t
T

ho
rn

hi
ll 

P
 &

 R
2,

91
8

15
2,

93
3

2,
44

4
44

2
47

0
0

A
40

 G
re

en
 R

oa
d 

R
ou

nd
ab

ou
t

5,
39

6
15

5,
41

1
3,

62
4

43
1

22
43

6
89

8
C

on
ge

st
io

n 
M

on
ito

rin
g 

A
N

P
R

79
4

2
79

6
69

6
10

0
0

0
0

T
N

R
 R

ou
te

in
g

13
50

63
63

0
0

0
0

O
xf

or
d 

V
M

S
44

1
20

0
64

1
14

1
50

0
0

0
0

C
hi

pp
in

g 
N

or
to

n 
A

Q
M

A
76

28
7

36
3

31
3

0
0

50
0

W
al

lin
gf

or
d 

A
Q

M
A

24
8

24
8

19
8

0
0

50
0

O
xf

or
d 

P
 &

 R
 e

xt
en

si
on

s
27

7
22

20
0

4,
08

2
4,

58
1

29
9

4,
28

2
0

0
0

A
cc

es
s 

to
 O

xf
or

d
85

6
85

6
0

0
0

0
85

6

R
o

ad
 S

af
et

y
82

5
54

0
1,

36
5

84
5

52
0

0
0

0

O
xf

o
rd

 T
ra

n
sp

o
rt

 S
tr

at
eg

y
S

um
m

er
to

w
n

1,
29

1
50

1,
34

1
1,

12
3

21
8

0
0

0
F

ai
rf

ax
 R

d/
P

ur
ce

ll 
R

d 
C

yc
le

 L
in

k
5

18
0

18
5

5
18

0
0

0
0

H
ig

hf
ie

ld
 A

re
a 

T
ra

ffi
c 

M
an

ag
em

en
t

20
96

11
6

0
11

6
0

0
0

C
yc

le
 Im

pr
ov

em
en

t s
ch

em
es

51
51

0
51

0
0

0
C

on
tr

ol
le

d 
P

ar
ki

ng
 Z

on
es

13
4

37
1

50
5

33
7

16
8

0
0

0
C

en
tr

al
 A

Q
M

A
31

53
84

38
46

0
0

0
Lo

nd
on

 R
d 

co
rr

id
or

 -
 p

ha
se

 2
1,

74
6

60
0

2,
34

6
1,

80
1

54
5

0
0

0
Lo

nd
on

 R
d 

co
rr

id
or

 -
 p

ha
se

 3
11

2
18

0
1,

74
3

2,
03

5
1,

12
2

91
3

0
0

0
N

ew
 In

n 
H

al
l S

tr
ee

t (
W

es
t E

nd
)

12
8

50
6

63
4

80
55

4
0

0
0

S
pe

ed
w

el
l S

tr
ee

t/S
t A

ld
at

e’
s 

(W
es

t E
nd

)
85

41
12

6
0

12
6

0
0

0

Page 24



G
I7

E
n

vi
ro

n
m

en
t 

&
 E

co
n

o
m

y 
(T

ra
n

sp
o

rt
) 

- 
M

ai
n

 C
ap

it
al

 P
ro

g
ra

m
m

e 
(A

u
g

u
st

 2
00

9)

P
H

A
S

E
D

 P
A

Y
M

E
N

T
S

 (
G

R
O

S
S

)
S

P
E

C
IF

IC
 F

IN
A

N
C

IN
G

O
T

H
E

R
C

ap
it

al
P

ro
je

ct
(S

)t
ar

t
B

ef
o

re
A

ft
er

T
O

T
A

L
G

ra
n

ts
 &

R
ec

ei
p

ts
R

ef
.

N
ar

ra
ti

ve
A

p
p

r.
(F

)i
n

is
h

20
09

/1
0

20
09

/1
0

20
10

/1
1

20
11

/1
2

20
12

/1
3

20
13

/1
4

20
14

/1
5

20
14

/1
5

C
O

S
T

S
C

A
C

o
n

t'n
s

R
ev

en
u

e
F

u
n

d
B

al
an

ce
(1

)
(2

)
(3

)
(4

)
(5

)
(6

)
(7

)
(8

)
(9

)
(1

0)
(1

1)
(1

2)
(1

3)
(1

4)
(1

5)
(1

6)
(1

7)
(1

8)
£0

00
£0

00
£0

00
£0

00
£0

00
£0

00
£0

00
£0

00
£0

00
£0

00
£0

00
£0

00
£0

00
£0

00

T
ra

n
sf

o
rm

 O
xf

o
rd

67
8

67
8

0
32

8
0

0
35

0
Q

ue
en

s 
S

tr
ee

t
9

98
5

99
4

99
4

0
0

0
0

F
rid

es
w

id
e 

S
qu

ar
e 

(W
es

t E
nd

)
64

13
6

1,
10

0
1,

30
0

0
1,

30
0

0
0

0

T
o

w
n

s 
P

ro
g

ra
m

m
e

A
bi

ng
do

n
A

bi
ng

do
n 

T
ow

n 
C

en
tr

e
2,

49
1

54
0

15
0

3,
18

1
2,

67
6

20
2

69
0

23
4

A
bi

ng
do

n 
se

co
nd

ar
y 

cy
cl

e 
ro

ut
es

3
35

38
0

38
0

0
0

M
ar

ch
am

 R
d 

P
h 

2
95

18
5

28
0

18
7

93
0

0
0

B
an

bu
ry

W
es

te
rn

 C
or

rid
or

26
1

1
26

2
80

18
2

0
0

0
M

er
to

n 
S

tr
ee

t O
ne

 w
ay

 s
ch

em
e

41
41

0
41

0
0

0
H

an
w

el
l F

ie
ld

s 
M

in
er

al
 R

ai
lw

ay
15

0
15

0
0

15
0

0
0

0
H

en
le

y
 T

ow
n 

C
en

tr
e

1,
16

4
28

0
1,

44
4

99
4

45
0

0
0

0
W

itn
ey

C
og

ge
s 

Li
nk

 R
oa

d
1,

54
1

65
0

1,
83

3
7,

94
0

3,
74

0
2,

10
0

17
,8

04
5,

06
5

12
,4

32
0

0
30

7
W

oo
d 

G
re

en
/W

es
t E

nd
 P

ed
 C

yc
le

 R
ou

te
25

85
11

0
35

75
0

0
0

B
ic

es
te

r
B

ic
es

te
r 

ce
nt

ra
l a

re
a 

im
pr

ov
em

en
t

75
0

75
0

0
75

0
0

0
0

O
th

er
 T

ow
ns

N
E

 C
ar

te
rt

on
 C

yc
le

 L
in

ks
34

19
53

0
53

0
0

0
C

ar
te

rt
on

 B
44

77
 u

pg
ra

de
2

23
25

0
25

0
0

0
A

m
br

os
de

n 
pe

de
st

ria
n 

re
fu

ge
36

3
39

0
39

0
0

0

P
u

b
lic

 T
ra

n
sp

o
rt

P
re

m
iu

m
 R

ou
te

s 
up

gr
ad

e
42

1
30

4
72

5
69

0
35

0
0

0
Iff

le
y 

R
d 

D
on

ni
ng

to
n 

br
id

ge
 jn

ct
1

22
2

22
3

14
3

0
80

0
0

P
ub

lic
 T

ra
ns

po
rt

 In
fo

rm
at

io
n 

P
ro

je
ct

67
1

28
8

23
2

1,
19

1
1,

19
1

0
0

0
0

R
ai

l S
ta

tio
n 

D
ev

el
op

m
en

t
12

5
13

4
25

9
25

9
0

0
0

0
D

id
co

t S
ta

tio
n 

F
or

ec
ou

rt
94

3
53

6
2,

75
0

1,
33

0
70

5,
62

9
0

4,
38

1
0

50
0

74
8

S
m

ar
te

r 
C

h
o

ic
es

 (
B

W
T

S
)

78
7

40
0

1,
18

7
1,

08
9

98
0

0
0

S
al

ar
ie

s
63

8
65

1
1,

28
9

1,
28

9
0

0
0

0

S
u

b
-T

o
ta

l 2
00

9/
10

 S
ta

rt
s

20
,7

87
9,

53
6

12
,7

47
13

,3
52

3,
81

0
2,

10
0

0
0

62
,3

32
27

,8
21

29
,8

64
21

8
1,

03
6

3,
39

3

Page 25



G
I7

E
n

vi
ro

n
m

en
t 

&
 E

co
n

o
m

y 
(T

ra
n

sp
o

rt
) 

- 
M

ai
n

 C
ap

it
al

 P
ro

g
ra

m
m

e 
(A

u
g

u
st

 2
00

9)

P
H

A
S

E
D

 P
A

Y
M

E
N

T
S

 (
G

R
O

S
S

)
S

P
E

C
IF

IC
 F

IN
A

N
C

IN
G

O
T

H
E

R
C

ap
it

al
P

ro
je

ct
(S

)t
ar

t
B

ef
o

re
A

ft
er

T
O

T
A

L
G

ra
n

ts
 &

R
ec

ei
p

ts
R

ef
.

N
ar

ra
ti

ve
A

p
p

r.
(F

)i
n

is
h

20
09

/1
0

20
09

/1
0

20
10

/1
1

20
11

/1
2

20
12

/1
3

20
13

/1
4

20
14

/1
5

20
14

/1
5

C
O

S
T

S
C

A
C

o
n

t'n
s

R
ev

en
u

e
F

u
n

d
B

al
an

ce
(1

)
(2

)
(3

)
(4

)
(5

)
(6

)
(7

)
(8

)
(9

)
(1

0)
(1

1)
(1

2)
(1

3)
(1

4)
(1

5)
(1

6)
(1

7)
(1

8)
£0

00
£0

00
£0

00
£0

00
£0

00
£0

00
£0

00
£0

00
£0

00
£0

00
£0

00
£0

00
£0

00
£0

00

P
o

st
 2

00
9/

10
 S

ta
rt

s

In
te

gr
at

ed
 T

ra
ns

po
rt

 F
P

5,
47

5
7,

25
1

7,
43

2
20

,1
58

20
,1

58
0

0
0

0

S
u

b
-T

o
ta

l P
o

st
 2

00
9/

10
 S

ta
rt

s
0

0
0

5,
47

5
7,

25
1

7,
43

2
0

0
20

,1
58

20
,1

58
0

0
0

0

A
n

n
u

al
 P

ro
g

ra
m

m
es

S
tr

u
ct

u
ra

l M
ai

n
te

n
an

ce
C

ar
ria

ge
w

ay
s

2,
03

0
1,

87
4

1,
84

6
1,

73
4

1,
97

0
9,

45
4

9,
00

4
0

0
0

45
0

F
oo

tw
ay

s
2,

14
0

1,
60

0
1,

80
0

1,
85

0
1,

65
0

9,
04

0
9,

04
0

0
0

0
0

S
ur

fa
ce

 T
re

at
m

en
ts

3,
06

1
3,

23
2

3,
60

0
3,

41
5

3,
50

0
16

,8
08

16
,7

68
0

0
0

40
S

tr
uc

tu
ra

l P
at

ch
in

g
28

1
54

3
54

3
54

3
55

0
2,

46
0

2,
17

9
0

0
0

28
1

B
rid

ge
s

2,
36

0
3,

58
0

3,
50

0
4,

30
0

4,
10

0
17

,8
40

17
,8

40
0

0
0

0
D

ra
in

ag
e

80
6

60
0

60
0

65
0

80
0

3,
45

6
2,

86
8

17
5

36
3

0
50

S
t L

ig
ht

in
g 

C
ol

um
n 

re
pl

ac
em

en
t

1,
02

8
1,

02
8

49
1

0
53

7
0

0
C

um
no

r 
H

ill
41

8
41

1
82

9
82

9
0

0
0

0
A

42
0 

Lo
w

er
 B

ou
rt

on
 J

un
ct

io
n

62
0

62
0

0
62

0
0

0
0

A
42

0 
(H

ea
di

ng
to

n 
- 

M
40

)
93

5
93

5
0

93
5

0
0

0
S

t A
ld

at
es

 P
ha

se
 2

87
3

10
0

97
3

97
3

0
0

0
0

H
ig

h 
S

tr
ee

t P
ha

se
 3

37
7

1,
66

6
38

4
2,

42
7

2,
20

7
22

0
0

0
0

P
rin

ci
pl

e 
R

oa
ds

20
21

6
1,

73
1

1,
40

0
1,

60
0

4,
96

7
4,

96
7

0
0

0
0

O
th

er
 H

Q
 It

em
s

90
5

90
5

28
0

62
5

0
0

0
C

ap
ita

l f
un

di
ng

 o
f c

ap
ita

lis
ab

le
 H

M
65

0
65

0
65

0
0

0
0

0

S
u

b
-T

o
ta

l A
n

n
u

al
 P

ro
g

ra
m

m
es

1,
66

8
16

,0
78

12
,9

64
13

,6
20

13
,8

92
14

,1
70

0
0

72
,3

92
68

,0
96

2,
57

5
90

0
0

82
1

S
U

B
-T

O
T

A
L

 E
&

E
 (

T
R

A
N

S
P

O
R

T
)

22
,4

55
25

,8
15

25
,7

11
32

,4
47

24
,9

53
23

,7
02

0
0

15
5,

08
3

11
6,

08
0

32
,6

35
1,

11
8

1,
03

6
4,

21
4

P
ro

fe
ss

io
na

l F
ee

s:
 F

irm
 P

ro
gr

am
m

e
0

0
0

0
0

0
P

ro
fe

ss
io

na
l F

ee
s:

 P
re

pa
ra

tio
n 

P
oo

l
30

0
30

0
30

0
90

0
0

0
0

90
0

0
T

O
T

A
L

 E
&

E
 (

T
R

A
N

S
P

O
R

T
)

22
,4

55
25

,8
15

26
,0

11
32

,7
47

25
,2

53
23

,7
02

0
0

15
5,

98
3

11
6,

08
0

32
,6

35
1,

11
8

1,
93

6
4,

21
4

Page 26



G
I7

E
n

vi
ro

n
m

en
t 

&
 E

co
n

o
m

y 
(O

th
er

) 
- 

M
ai

n
 C

ap
it

al
 P

ro
g

ra
m

m
e 

(A
u

g
u

st
 2

00
9)

P
H

A
S

E
D

 P
A

Y
M

E
N

T
S

 (
G

R
O

S
S

)
S

P
E

C
IF

IC
 F

IN
A

N
C

IN
G

O
T

H
E

R
C

ap
it

al
P

ro
je

ct
(S

)t
ar

t
B

ef
o

re
A

ft
er

T
O

T
A

L
G

ra
n

ts
 &

R
ec

ei
p

ts
R

ef
.

N
ar

ra
ti

ve
A

p
p

r.
(F

)i
n

is
h

20
09

/1
0

20
09

/1
0

20
10

/1
1

20
11

/1
2

20
12

/1
3

20
13

/1
4

20
14

/1
5

20
14

/1
5

C
O

S
T

S
C

A
C

o
n

t'n
s

R
ev

en
u

e
F

u
n

d
B

al
an

ce
(1

)
(2

)
(3

)
(4

)
(5

)
(6

)
(7

)
(8

)
(9

)
(1

0)
(1

1)
(1

2)
(1

3)
(1

4)
(1

5)
(1

6)
(1

7)
(1

8)
£0

00
£0

00
£0

00
£0

00
£0

00
£0

00
£0

00
£0

00
£0

00
£0

00
£0

00
£0

00
£0

00
£0

00

P
re

 2
00

9/
10

 S
ta

rt
s

E
nv

iro
nm

en
ta

l a
dv

ic
e/

co
ns

ul
ta

nc
y

11
9

20
0

0
0

0
20

C
ar

b
o

n
 M

an
ag

em
en

t
E

ne
rg

y 
C

on
se

rv
at

io
n 

(P
ru

de
nt

ia
lly

 fu
nd

ed
)

34
1

15
0

51
6

51
7

1,
52

4
0

0
0

0
1,

52
4

S
tr

ee
t L

ig
ht

in
g 

(P
ru

de
nt

ia
lly

 fu
nd

ed
)

22
6

22
6

0
0

0
0

22
6

S
A

LI
X

29
1

30
9

60
0

0
30

0
30

0
0

0
E

ne
rg

y 
B

us
10

1
10

1
0

0
0

0
10

1
A

ut
om

at
ed

 M
on

ito
rin

g 
&

 T
ar

ge
tin

g
61

56
11

7
0

0
0

0
11

7
B

ul
k 

F
ue

l S
to

ra
ge

17
17

0
0

0
0

17
C

ar
bo

n 
M

an
ag

em
en

t F
un

d
14

7
14

7
0

0
0

0
14

7

B
O

P
S

ou
th

er
n 

A
re

a 
O

ffi
ce

s
26

9
26

9
0

0
0

26
9

0
S

to
ra

ge
22

5
22

5
0

0
0

22
5

0
B

an
bu

ry
 O

ffi
ce

2,
79

6
3,

21
3

6,
00

9
0

6
0

2,
88

8
3,

11
5

C
ou

nt
y 

H
al

l
1,

46
3

1,
20

8
2,

67
1

0
0

50
86

2
1,

75
9

E
as

t O
xf

or
d 

O
ffi

ce
 -

 K
ni

gh
ts

 C
ou

rt
74

2
85

82
7

0
0

0
82

7
0

O
xf

or
d 

O
pt

io
ns

85
75

0
11

5
95

0
0

0
30

0
92

0
O

xf
or

d 
O

pt
io

ns
 -

 L
au

nd
ry

9
14

8
15

7
0

0
23

0
13

4
Y

ou
th

 O
ffe

nd
in

g 
S

er
vi

ce
15

0
15

0
0

0
0

15
0

0
T

ra
di

ng
 S

ta
nd

ar
ds

48
0

48
0

0
0

0
48

0
0

M
ac

cl
es

fie
ld

 H
ou

se
 IC

T
 n

od
e

50
0

50
0

0
0

0
50

0
0

B
O

P
 C

ap
ita

l R
ev

en
ue

 S
w

itc
h

90
7

40
12

0
12

0
1,

18
7

0
0

0
1,

07
4

11
3

B
O

P
 C

on
tin

ge
nc

y
43

7
43

7
0

0
0

0
43

7

S
u

b
-T

o
ta

l P
re

 2
00

9/
10

 S
ta

rt
s

6,
51

9
7,

58
3

1,
75

5
63

7
12

0
0

0
0

16
,6

14
0

30
6

40
3

7,
27

5
8,

63
0

20
09

/1
0 

S
ta

rt
s

C
on

tr
ib

ut
io

ns
 to

 C
hi

pp
in

g 
N

or
to

n 
T

ow
n 

P
ar

tn
er

sh
ip

 P
ro

gr
am

m
e

12
0

20
6

32
6

0
0

0
31

0
16

O
xf

or
d 

C
as

tle
 E

du
ca

tio
n 

C
en

tr
e

66
66

0
0

0
0

66
R

ed
br

id
ge

 H
ol

lo
w

 -
 F

ly
 T

ip
pe

d 
W

as
te

12
1,

16
8

1,
18

0
0

0
0

0
1,

18
0

R
el

oc
at

io
n 

of
 C

ou
nt

ry
si

de
 S

er
vi

ce
s

2
35

8
36

0
0

0
0

0
36

0

Page 27



G
I7

E
n

vi
ro

n
m

en
t 

&
 E

co
n

o
m

y 
(O

th
er

) 
- 

M
ai

n
 C

ap
it

al
 P

ro
g

ra
m

m
e 

(A
u

g
u

st
 2

00
9)

P
H

A
S

E
D

 P
A

Y
M

E
N

T
S

 (
G

R
O

S
S

)
S

P
E

C
IF

IC
 F

IN
A

N
C

IN
G

O
T

H
E

R
C

ap
it

al
P

ro
je

ct
(S

)t
ar

t
B

ef
o

re
A

ft
er

T
O

T
A

L
G

ra
n

ts
 &

R
ec

ei
p

ts
R

ef
.

N
ar

ra
ti

ve
A

p
p

r.
(F

)i
n

is
h

20
09

/1
0

20
09

/1
0

20
10

/1
1

20
11

/1
2

20
12

/1
3

20
13

/1
4

20
14

/1
5

20
14

/1
5

C
O

S
T

S
C

A
C

o
n

t'n
s

R
ev

en
u

e
F

u
n

d
B

al
an

ce
(1

)
(2

)
(3

)
(4

)
(5

)
(6

)
(7

)
(8

)
(9

)
(1

0)
(1

1)
(1

2)
(1

3)
(1

4)
(1

5)
(1

6)
(1

7)
(1

8)
£0

00
£0

00
£0

00
£0

00
£0

00
£0

00
£0

00
£0

00
£0

00
£0

00
£0

00
£0

00
£0

00
£0

00

W
as

te
 M

an
ag

em
en

t
0

0
0

0
0

0
O

ak
le

y 
W

oo
d 

W
R

C
 R

ed
ev

el
op

m
en

t
71

67
9

75
0

0
75

0
0

0
0

W
R

C
 R

ed
ev

el
op

m
en

t  
- 

F
ut

ur
e 

P
ro

gr
am

m
e

4
71

1,
55

0
75

0
35

0
2,

72
5

0
2,

06
9

0
0

65
6

O
xf

or
d 

W
as

te
 P

ar
tn

er
sh

ip
 P

R
G

 a
llo

ca
tio

n
17

4
36

4
53

8
0

53
8

0
0

0

S
u

b
-T

o
ta

l 2
00

9/
10

 S
ta

rt
s

89
2,

63
6

1,
75

6
1,

11
4

35
0

0
0

0
5,

94
5

0
3,

35
7

0
31

0
2,

27
8

P
o

st
 2

00
9/

10
 S

ta
rt

s

0
0

0
0

0
0

S
u

b
-T

o
ta

l P
o

st
 2

00
9/

10
 S

ta
rt

s
0

0
0

0
0

0
0

0
0

0
0

0
0

0

A
n

n
u

al
 P

ro
g

ra
m

m
es

B
ac

kl
og

 M
ai

nt
en

an
ce

 (
P

ru
de

nt
ia

lly
 fu

nd
ed

)
17

,3
52

5,
65

6
1,

99
2

25
,0

00
0

1,
88

2
0

0
23

,1
18

M
in

or
 W

or
ks

61
3

49
0

50
0

50
0

2,
10

3
0

0
0

0
2,

10
3

H
ea

lth
 &

 S
af

et
y 

(N
on

-S
ch

oo
ls

)
28

28
0

0
0

0
28

C
on

tin
ge

nc
y 

- 
st

af
f d

el
iv

er
y

50
50

50
15

0
0

0
0

0
15

0

O
pp

or
tu

ni
ty

 P
ur

ch
as

e 
F

un
d

34
3

34
3

0
0

0
0

34
3

W
ho

le
 L

ife
 V

al
ue

 P
oo

l-B
ud

ge
t P

ro
vi

si
on

10
0

10
0

10
0

10
0

10
0

50
0

0
0

0
0

50
0

S
u

b
-T

o
ta

l A
n

n
u

al
 P

ro
g

ra
m

m
es

17
,3

52
6,

44
7

2,
97

5
65

0
60

0
10

0
0

0
28

,1
24

0
1,

88
2

0
0

26
,2

42

S
U

B
-T

O
T

A
L

 E
&

E
 (

O
T

H
E

R
)

23
,9

60
16

,6
66

6,
48

6
2,

40
1

1,
07

0
10

0
0

0
50

,6
83

0
5,

54
5

40
3

7,
58

5
37

,1
50

P
ro

fe
ss

io
na

l F
ee

s:
 F

irm
 P

ro
gr

am
m

e
0

0
0

0
0

0
P

ro
fe

ss
io

na
l F

ee
s:

 P
re

pa
ra

tio
n 

P
oo

l
0

0
0

0
0

0
T

O
T

A
L

 E
&

E
 (

O
T

H
E

R
)

23
,9

60
16

,6
66

6,
48

6
2,

40
1

1,
07

0
10

0
0

0
50

,6
83

0
5,

54
5

40
3

7,
58

5
37

,1
50

Page 28



G
I7

C
o

m
m

u
n

it
y 

S
af

et
y 

M
ai

n
 C

ap
it

al
 P

ro
g

ra
m

m
e 

(A
u

g
u

st
 2

00
9)

P
H

A
S

E
D

 P
A

Y
M

E
N

T
S

 (
G

R
O

S
S

)
S

P
E

C
IF

IC
 F

IN
A

N
C

IN
G

O
T

H
E

R
C

ap
it

al
P

ro
je

ct
(S

)t
ar

t
B

ef
o

re
A

ft
er

T
O

T
A

L
G

ra
n

ts
 &

R
ec

ei
p

ts
R

ef
.

N
ar

ra
ti

ve
A

p
p

r.
(F

)i
n

is
h

20
09

/1
0

20
09

/1
0

20
10

/1
1

20
11

/1
2

20
12

/1
3

20
13

/1
4

20
14

/1
5

20
14

/1
5

C
O

S
T

S
C

A
C

o
n

t'n
s

R
ev

en
u

e
F

u
n

d
B

al
an

ce
(1

)
(2

)
(3

)
(4

)
(5

)
(6

)
(7

)
(8

)
(9

)
(1

0)
(1

1)
(1

2)
(1

3)
(1

4)
(1

5)
(1

6)
(1

7)
(1

8)
£0

00
£0

00
£0

00
£0

00
£0

00
£0

00
£0

00
£0

00
£0

00
£0

00
£0

00
£0

00
£0

00
£0

00

F
ir

e 
&

 R
es

cu
e 

S
er

vi
ce

B
an

bu
ry

 F
ire

 S
ta

tio
n 

- 
N

ew
 D

im
en

si
on

61
1

62
0

62
0

0
0

R
ad

io
 R

ep
la

ce
m

en
t S

ch
em

e
6

6
0

6
0

0
0

C
rit

ic
al

 W
or

ks
50

61
11

1
0

35
26

0
50

M
in

or
 W

or
ks

62
62

0
51

11
0

0
B

ic
es

te
r 

F
ire

 S
ta

tio
n

26
15

9
25

0
43

5
0

42
4

0
0

11
W

al
lin

gf
or

d 
F

ire
 S

ta
tio

n
12

10
13

73
5

1,
63

0
2,

40
0

0
16

6
0

0
2,

23
4

T
ha

m
e 

F
ire

 S
ta

tio
n

50
75

0
1,

50
0

2,
30

0
0

80
0

0
0

1,
50

0

S
u

b
-T

o
ta

l F
ir

e 
&

 R
es

cu
e 

S
er

vi
ce

14
9

34
9

1,
01

3
2,

23
5

1,
63

0
0

0
0

5,
37

6
0

1,
54

4
37

0
3,

79
5

G
yp

sy
 &

 T
ra

ve
lle

r 
S

it
es

R
ed

br
id

ge
 H

ol
lo

w
 A

dd
iti

on
al

 P
itc

h 
12

6
12

6
0

12
6

0
0

0
R

ed
br

id
ge

 H
ol

lo
w

 T
ra

ve
lle

r 
S

ite
 

R
ef

ur
bi

sh
m

en
t o

f A
m

en
ity

 U
ni

ts
69

69
0

56
13

0
0

S
u

b
-T

o
ta

l G
yp

sy
 &

 t
ra

ve
lle

r 
S

it
es

0
19

5
0

0
0

0
0

0
19

5
0

18
2

13
0

0

A
n

n
u

al
 P

ro
g

ra
m

m
es

S
af

er
 S

tr
on

ge
r 

C
om

m
un

iti
es

 G
ra

nt
20

1
20

1
40

2
0

40
2

0
0

0

S
u

b
-T

o
ta

l A
n

n
u

al
 P

ro
g

ra
m

m
es

20
1

20
1

0
0

0
0

0
0

40
2

0
40

2
0

0
0

S
U

B
-T

O
T

A
L

 C
O

M
M

U
N

IT
Y

 S
A

F
E

T
Y

35
0

74
5

1,
01

3
2,

23
5

1,
63

0
0

0
0

5,
97

3
0

2,
12

8
50

0
3,

79
5

P
ro

fe
ss

io
na

l F
ee

s:
 F

irm
 P

ro
gr

am
m

e
0

0
0

0
0

0
P

ro
fe

ss
io

na
l F

ee
s:

 P
re

pa
ra

tio
n 

P
oo

l
0

0
0

0
0

0
T

O
T

A
L

 C
O

M
M

U
N

IT
Y

 S
A

F
E

T
Y

35
0

74
5

1,
01

3
2,

23
5

1,
63

0
0

0
0

5,
97

3
0

2,
12

8
50

0
3,

79
5

Page 29



G
I7

C
o

rp
o

ra
te

 C
o

re
 -

 M
ai

n
 C

ap
it

al
 P

ro
g

ra
m

m
e 

(A
u

g
u

st
 2

00
9)

P
H

A
S

E
D

 P
A

Y
M

E
N

T
S

 (
G

R
O

S
S

)
S

P
E

C
IF

IC
 F

IN
A

N
C

IN
G

O
T

H
E

R
C

ap
it

al
P

ro
je

ct
(S

)t
ar

t
B

ef
o

re
A

ft
er

T
O

T
A

L
G

ra
n

ts
 &

R
ec

ei
p

ts
R

ef
.

N
ar

ra
ti

ve
A

p
p

r.
(F

)i
n

is
h

20
09

/1
0

20
09

/1
0

20
10

/1
1

20
11

/1
2

20
12

/1
3

20
13

/1
4

20
14

/1
5

20
14

/1
5

C
O

S
T

S
C

A
C

o
n

t'n
s

R
ev

en
u

e
F

u
n

d
B

al
an

ce
(1

)
(2

)
(3

)
(4

)
(5

)
(6

)
(7

)
(8

)
(9

)
(1

0)
(1

1)
(1

2)
(1

3)
(1

4)
(1

5)
(1

6)
(1

7)
(1

8)
£0

00
£0

00
£0

00
£0

00
£0

00
£0

00
£0

00
£0

00
£0

00
£0

00
£0

00
£0

00
£0

00
£0

00

A
n

n
u

al
 P

ro
g

ra
m

m
es

IC
T

 H
ar

dw
ar

e 
&

 S
of

tw
ar

e
10

00
10

00
10

00
10

00
4,

00
0

0
0

0
0

4,
00

0

S
U

B
-T

O
T

A
L

 C
O

R
P

O
R

A
T

E
 C

O
R

E
0

1,
00

0
1,

00
0

1,
00

0
1,

00
0

0
0

0
4,

00
0

0
0

0
0

4,
00

0
P

ro
fe

ss
io

na
l F

ee
s:

 F
irm

 P
ro

gr
am

m
e

0
0

0
0

0
0

P
ro

fe
ss

io
na

l F
ee

s:
 P

re
pa

ra
tio

n 
P

oo
l

0
0

0
0

0
0

T
O

T
A

L
 C

O
R

P
O

R
A

T
E

 C
O

R
E

0
1,

00
0

1,
00

0
1,

00
0

1,
00

0
0

0
0

4,
00

0
0

0
0

0
4,

00
0

Page 30



Division(s): N/A 
 

 

GROWTH & INFRASTRUCTURE SCRUTINY COMMITTEE 
28 OCTOBER 2009 

 

UPDATE ON OXFORDSHIRE MINERALS AND WASTE 
DEVELOPMENT FRAMEWORK 

 
Report by Head of Sustainable Development 

 

New Planning System 
 
1. The Planning and Compulsory Purchase Act 2004 brought in a new planning 

system, including: 
• Minerals & Waste Development Frameworks (MWDFs) prepared by 

County Councils; 
• Replacement of Structure Plans by Regional Spatial Strategies. 

 
Minerals & Waste Development Frameworks (MWDFs) 

 
2. MWDFs should comprise a portfolio of documents: 

• Local Development Scheme or Minerals & Waste Development Scheme – 
this is the Council’s programme and timetable for preparing documents; it 
must be agreed with the Government Office and kept up to date. 

• Statement of Community Involvement – this sets out the Council’s policy 
on consultation and engagement in preparing the plan documents. 

• Core Strategy – this is the key policy document, which sets out the vision, 
objectives, spatial strategy and key policies for the next 15+ years; it must 
be submitted to the Secretary of State for examination. 

• Site Allocations Documents – these documents identify specific sites for 
development; they must be submitted to the Secretary of State for 
examination. 

• Annual Monitoring Report – this reports on progress in preparing the 
MWDF and the effectiveness of policies in achieving the plan objectives; it 
must be submitted to the Secretary of State annually. 

 
3. The Core Strategy and Site Allocations Documents must be submitted to the 

Secretary of State for independent examination by an Inspector.  The 
document is examined for ‘soundness’ against the ‘tests of soundness’ set out 
in government policy (PPS12: Local Spatial Planning).  The Inspector’s report 
is binding on the authority.  (This requirement also previously applied to the 
Statement of Community Involvement, but the procedure for preparing and 
reviewing that document has now been simplified.) 

 
Oxfordshire Minerals & Waste Development Framework 
(MWDF) 

 
4. The MWDF needs to include strategy, policies and sites for: 

Minerals: 
• Sand & gravel working; 

Agenda Item 9

Page 31



GI 
 
 

• Limestone and ironstone working; 
• Recycled & secondary aggregates; 
• Rail-head aggregate depots. 
Waste 
• Recycling & composting; 
• Other waste treatment; 
• Residual landfill + landfill of waste from London; 
• For all waste types: Municipal; Commercial & Industrial; Construction & 

Demolition; Hazardous; Radioactive. 
 
5. A Minerals and Waste Development Scheme was agreed in May 2005; this 

set the following programme of document preparation: 
• Statement of Community Involvement – adoption December 2006; 
• Minerals & Waste Core Strategy – adoption July 2008; 
• Minerals Sites Document – adoption July 2008; 
• Waste Sites Document – adoption July 2008. 

 
6. The Statement of Community Involvement was prepared to timetable and 

adopted in November 2006.  The Core Strategy and Sites Documents were 
originally to be prepared in parallel, but the timetable was amended in March 
2006 to show preparation of the Sites Documents slightly behind the Core 
Strategy. 

 
Consultation Documents 

 
7. In 2006/2007 we consulted on: 

• Minerals & Waste Core Strategy Issues & Options – consultation paper 
published June 2006; 

• Minerals & Waste Core Strategy Preferred Options – consultation paper 
February 2007; 

• Waste Site Proposals Issues & Options – consultation paper February 
2007; 

• Minerals Site Proposals Issues & Options – consultation paper April 2007. 
 
8. In response to the Core Strategy Preferred Options consultation, the 

Government Office for the South East (GOSE) advised: 
• the preferred options do not give sufficient spatial direction on what 

minerals and waste developments will take place where;  
• consequently the Core Strategy is at risk of being found 'unsound' when 

independently examined; 
• therefore the preferred options should be revised and the consultation 

repeated; and 
• the Core Strategy should be prepared well ahead of the Minerals and 

Waste Sites documents (a change from earlier advice).   
 

Risk Management 
 
9. Through extensive dialogue with GOSE, CLG and the Planning Inspectorate, 

we sought to establish what a ‘sound’ core strategy should look like.  There 
was a particular problem over what core strategies should say about locations 

Page 32



GI 
 
 

for development in order to be ‘sound’.  But we were unable to reach 
agreement and substantial uncertainty remained. 

 
10. This uncertainty was reinforced by an apparent wide variation across the 

country in interpretation of policy and procedures and in advice being given to 
planning authorities by Government Offices and the Planning Inspectorate.  
We discovered that many other counties were experiencing similar or worse 
problems and that a number had decided to repeat, put back or defer work on 
their MWDFs.   

 
11. In 2007 the Government proposed to make changes to the LDF system to 

make it simpler and clearer but these were not finalised until June 2008.  In 
view of all this, the Cabinet Member for Sustainable Development resolved in 
January 2008 that formal work on the MWDF be deferred until the situation 
became clearer. 

 
Revised Regulations and Government Policy 

 
12. The Government published revised Regulations and Policy (PPS12: Local 

Spatial Planning) on LDFs in June 2008.  Key changes to the system are:   
• The consultation process has been simplified and made less prescribed, 

with discretion given to planning authorities to decide who and how to 
consult in the preparation of plan documents; 

• There is increased emphasis on preparation of core strategies; 
• ‘Strategic sites’ for development may now be allocated in core strategies; 

and site allocation documents should only be prepared if really necessary. 
 
13. Over the last two years we have been involved in the Planning Officers 

Society Minerals and Waste Learning Project.  This has enabled sharing of 
experience with and learning from other authorities.  In September 2008 the 
Planning Advisory Service carried out a diagnostic review of our MWDF.  This 
identified areas where we would benefit from support.  As a result, some 
useful support packages have been provided free of charge through the 
Planning Advisory Service. 

 
14. Given the increase in clarity and understanding of the LDF system that 

seemed to have emerged by the end of 2008, a revised programme for 
preparation of the MWDF was agreed by the Cabinet Member for Sustainable 
Development in December 2008.  This included: 
• A focus on preparing the Minerals & Waste Core Strategy, with no 

timetable set for any sites documents that might also be needed; 
• The inclusion of strategic sites for minerals and waste developments in 

the Core Strategy, envisaged as covering most site requirements; 
• A revised, November 2011 target for adoption of the Core Strategy. 
This revised programme has been sent to GOSE for informal comments, prior 
to formally submitting a revised Minerals and Waste Development Scheme for 
agreement, but a response is awaited. 

 
15. The revised timetable for preparation of the Minerals and Waste Core 

Strategy is set out in the Annex to this report.  It shows that the next main step 
in the process is consultation on revised preferred options for the Minerals & 

Page 33



GI 
 
 

Waste Core Strategy.  There has been some slippage in this timetable; with 
engagement and consultation on preparation of options now extending at 
least until the end of this year and consultation on revised preferred options 
expected in spring 2010.  This may have knock-on implications for the 
remainder of the timetable. 

 
Current Position 

 
16. There is continuing uncertainty about how to prepare a sound Minerals and 

Waste Core Strategy.  Recent advice from the Planning Inspectorate cautions 
against including sites in minerals and waste core strategies except in quite 
limited circumstances.  Consequently we are again revising our thinking on 
the content of the Minerals & Waste Core Strategy.  For minerals, it is now 
likely that the Core Strategy will set out broad strategic locations for mineral 
working but that actual sites for working will be included in a separate and 
subsequent Site Allocations document.  For waste, sites for strategic waste 
management facilities may be identified in the Core Strategy, but otherwise it 
will either set out broad locations and/or locational criteria, with detailed sites 
being included in a separate and subsequent Site Allocations document. 

 
17. A review of the aggregate minerals supply policy in the South East Plan 

(Policy M3) is currently being undertaken.  A new sub-regional apportionment 
between counties of the quantities of sand & gravel and rock (limestone & 
ironstone) to be provided for in the region is proposed.  The proposal includes 
a regional figure for sand and gravel that is lower than the Government’s new 
guideline figure for the South East.  Following consultation, an Examination in 
Public was held earlier this month.  The Panel’s report is expected later this 
year and the final decision will be made by the Secretary of State.  The 
proposed new apportionment includes slightly lower figures for Oxfordshire, 
which the County Council has supported.  But the outcome is not certain and 
it is possible that the final figures for Oxfordshire will be higher than existing. 

 
18. We are currently preparing spatial strategy options for mineral working in 

Oxfordshire for the period to 2026.  The selected strategy will form the basis 
of the minerals part of the Minerals and Waste Core Strategy.  This work has 
been discussed with the Minerals and Waste Plan Working Group.  Following 
informal consultations on the options (see paragraph 21) and appraisal of 
them, a report will be put to Cabinet recommending preferred options.  There 
will be an opportunity for the report to be considered by the Scrutiny 
Committee before it goes to Cabinet.  Public consultation will then be carried 
out on the preferred options.   

 
19. Work on drawing up spatial strategy options for waste is less far advanced.  

The development of a waste strategy is a more complex task than it is for 
minerals and consequently is taking longer.  In particular, data on waste 
management is more complex, with more variables and uncertainties. A waste 
needs assessment is being prepared, to establish the additional waste 
management capacity that needs to be provided over the plan period to 2026.  
However the Berkshire Unitary Authorities have recently been forced to 
withdraw their Minerals and Waste Core Strategy because of problems with 
data revealed at the examination, which the Inspector indicated would lead to 

Page 34



GI 
 
 

the document being found unsound.  In view of this, we are reviewing the 
work we have done on this aspect of the evidence base.  The proposals for an 
energy from waste treatment plant to deal with the county’s residual municipal 
waste will be a key element in developing the spatial strategy for waste 
management in the Core Strategy.  When decisions have been made on the 
planning applications for EFW plants at Ardley and Sutton Courtenay it will be 
possible to generate spatial strategy options that take this into account.   

 
20. We are required to carry out Sustainability Appraisal (SA) of the MWDF.  This 

assessment must take into account social, economic and environmental 
criteria and should also encompass the requirements for Strategic 
Environmental Assessment.  As the first stage in this process, we have 
prepared a Scoping Report, which has been published on the County Council 
website.  This provides a framework, including sustainability appraisal 
objectives, for assessment of the documents that will make up the MWDF.  
SA should be integrated with the plan preparation process, and the next stage 
will be appraisal of the spatial strategy options for mineral working. 

 
21. There is a strong emphasis in the LDF system on community involvement and 

consultation at an early stage in the plan preparation process, before 
documents are published for formal comment.  A main plank of community 
involvement so far has been the Minerals and Waste Stakeholder Forum, 
comprising about 20 people drawn from: the minerals and waste industries; 
district councils; parish councils; local action groups; environmental 
organisations; and statutory bodies.  This group was independently facilitated 
and met 7 times between May 2005 and January 2007.  We are now drawing 
up a programme of consultation workshops and meetings with key 
stakeholder groups, including: statutory and technical consultees; adjoining 
authorities; the minerals and waste industries; district councils; parish 
councils; and environmental and amenity groups.  County Council members 
will be kept informed and will be invited to the district councils meeting.  This 
consultation will be used to inform the selection of preferred options. 

 
RECOMMENDATION 
 

22. The Growth and Infrastructure Scrutiny Committee is RECOMMENDED 
to note the report. 

 
 
 
CHRIS COUSINS 
Head of Sustainable Development 
 
Background Papers: Nil 
 
Contact Officer:  Peter Day, tel. Oxford 815544 
 
October 2009 

Page 35



GI 
 
 

 

ANNEX 
Oxfordshire Minerals and Waste Development Framework 

Revised Timetable for Preparation of Minerals and Waste Core Strategy (July 2009) 
 

Document 
Title 
and Status 

Brief Description Chain of 
Conformity 

Commence 
Preparation 

Consult on 
scope of 
Sustainability 
Appraisal 
(milestone) 

Community 
Engagement & 
Consultation 
(Reg. 17 / 25 public 
participation) 

Draft 
Submission 
Document 
or SPD 
(milestone) 

Submit to 
Secretary 
of State 
(milestone) 

Independent 
Examination 

Adoption 
(milestone) 

Minerals 
and Waste 
Core 
Strategy 
Development 
Plan 
Document 

To set out the 
Council’s vision, 
objectives, spatial 
strategy and 
policies; and to 
identify strategic 
sites for minerals 
and waste 
development; for 
a period of at 
least 15 years 

Must be in 
general 
conformity 
with 
Regional 
Spatial 
Strategy 

Commenced 
March 2005 

April – May 
2009 

Initial Issues & Options 
consultations June 2006 
(Core Strategy) & 
Feb/April 2007 (Sites); 
Initial Preferred Options 
consultation (Core 
Strategy) Feb 2007; 
Further engagement & 
consultation Nov 2008 – 
Oct 2009; 
Revised Preferred 
Options consultation 
Jan – Feb 2010 

Publish for 
rep-
resentations 
to be made 
October 
2010 

December 
2010 

Pre-hearing 
meeting 
January 
2011; 
Hearings 
March – April 
2011; 
Inspector’s 
final Report 
August 2011 

November 
2011 

 
Notes: 
1. The Statement of Community Involvement was adopted in November 2006 and is therefore not shown here. 
 
2. Stages in italics have already been completed. 
 
3. Decisions on the need for other Development Plan Documents: Minerals and Waste Detailed Site Allocations DPD or 
DPDs, and for and Supplementary Planning Documents: Minerals and Waste Development Code of Practice SPD and 
Restoration and After-use of Minerals and Waste Sites SPD; will be made when preparation of the Core Strategy is 
further advanced. 

P
age 36



Growth & Infrastructure Scrutiny Committee 
28 October 2009 

 
Work Programme Update 

 
Growth & Infrastructure 

 

LTP3 task group: update at each 
meeting with a full report to Spring 
2010 meeting. 

The Council’s policy on 
archaeological remains in respect of 
planning applications:  Question and 
answer session. 

Biodiversity: Question and answer 
session. 

Park & Ride: Question and answer 
session. 

The Council’s approach to reducing 
its carbon footprint: Select 
Committee.    
 

 
Growth & Infrastructure Scrutiny 
Committee 
 
 

October 2009 
 
LTP 3 Working Group - update at 
each meeting. with a full report to 
Spring 2010 meeting 
 
Biodiversity - Q&A 
The Council’s policy on 
archaeological remains in respect of 
planning applications  - Q&A 
Park & Ride - Q&A 
 
They will also receive quarterly 
progress reports on the capital 
infrastructure process. 
 
Spring 2010 
 
LTP 3 Working Group - full report.   
 
Spring/Summer  
 
Council’s approach to reducing its 
carbon footprint - Select Committee. 

 

Agenda Item 10

Page 37



Page 38

This page is intentionally left blank


	Agenda
	3 Minutes
	7 Capital Infrastructure Process - Quarterly Update
	GI_OCT2809R04

	9 Minerals and Waste Development Framework Progress Update
	10 Work Programme

